


Constitution and
FunCtion
The Fiji Electricity Authority was established, 
incorporated and constituted under the provisions of 
the Electricity Act of 1966 and began operating from first 
August of that year.

Members of the Authority are appointed by the relevant 
line Minister.  The Chief Executive is an ex-officio member 
and is responsible to the Members for the Authority’s 
management and for execution of its policies. The 
powers, functions and duties of the Authority under the 
Electricity Act are for the basic purpose of providing and 
maintaining a power supply that is financially viable, 
economically sound, and consistent with the required 
standards of safety, security and quality of power supply.

A uniform rate tariff is charged for electricity used by 
each consumer group. The tariffs are fixed according to 
government policy, and are designed to meet specified 
targets while achieving a reasonable rate of return for 
the Shareholder.

The Authority is entrusted with enforcing the Electricity 
Act and regulations, setting standards, examining and 
registering electricians, and is empowered to approve 
and license suppliers to serve certain areas.

The Authority is also governed by the requirements 
under the Public Enterprises Act.
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CoVER
FEa’s creativity to embed 18 pairs of optic fibre 
within the 132 KV transmission line ground 
wire from Cunningham to Vuda via Wailoa has 
brought benefits to the entire island of Viti Levu. 
the optic fibre will be used for communication 
between East and West in addition to being used 
for FEa’s own system operations.

www.fea.com.fj

Website address

Vision
‘Energising our People and our 
Nation.'

Mission
‘We will provide clean and 
affordable energy solutions to Fiji 
and the Pacific.

We aim to provide all energy 
through renewable resources by 
2011'.

VaLuEs
Customer focus
Honesty
Courage to do what’s right for FEA
Team work
Individual accountability
Transparency
Innovativeness
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Dear Minister,

Annual Report 2008

I am pleased to present Fiji Electricity 

Authority’s Annual Report for 2008.  The 

report provides a detailed summary of 

FEA’s performance in accordance with 

Section 25 of the Electricity Act Cap 

180.

2008 has been an important year, not 

just for the Authority, but also for the 

whole nation.  Construction of the 

Nadarivatu renewable hydro power 

project commenced in December 2008 

and will add 41 MW of power capacity 

to the power system when completed. 

The US$150 million project is planned 

to be completed by August 2011 and is 

capable of generating 101 million units 

of electrical energy in a normal rainfall 

year.

This project is a major step towards 

achieving the Authority’s renewable 

energy target of generating 90% of its 

energy through renewable resources 

by 2011.

The Authority continued to meet 

all its obligations and fulfill all its 

responsibilities whilst also continuing 

with efficient operation of the power 

system.

On behalf of the Members of the 

Authority, I take this opportunity 

to thank the Government for its 

continued support and look forward to 

continued support in 2009 and beyond.

Sincerely,

Nizam-ud-Dean

Chairman

hon. Minister for Works, transport and public utilities
level 4 - nasilivata house
ratu Mara road, Suva

Letter to the Minister
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On 8th September 2008,  FEA signed a contract with Sinohydro 
Corporation Ltd of China to construct the Nadarivatu Renewable 

Hydro Power Project. This project has been accepted as a project of 
national importance by the Fiji Government. 
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•	 FEA	made	a	financial	profit	of	$2.5	
million after tax for the year, which 
reflects a Return on Shareholder 
Funds (ROSF) of positive 0.6%. Several 
decisions made by the shareholder 
in 2008 based on social and national 
interests impacted FEA adversely by 
$16.5 million and contributed to the 
lower return. The Government has set 
a ROSF target of 2.5% for FEA.

•	 FEA’s	deemed	dividend	payment	for	
2008 to the Government through 
providing social obligations is about 
$22 million.

•	 An	independent	research	conducted	in	
December 2008 by Tebbutt Research 
shows that whilst FEA has improved 
its customer service performance 
level in 2008 compared to 2007, 
overall customer satisfaction level has 
reduced in 2008 when compared with 
2007.

•	 On	8th	September	2008,	FEA	signed	a	
contract with Sinohydro Corporation 
Limited of China to construct the 
Nadarivatu renewable hydro power 
project with a power capacity of 41 
MW and generation output of 101 
million units of electricity per year. 
The estimated project cost is US$150 
million with completion planned for 
August 2011. 

•	 A	US$30	million	commercial	loan	was	
obtained from ANZ Bank to fund part 
of the Nadarivatu renewable hydro 
power project. Another US$70 million 
loan was also signed in-principle with 
China Development Bank to fund the 
Project. The final loan agreement is 
expected to be signed in early 2009.

•	 An	advance	payment	of	US$43.8	
million was made to Sinohydro on 
17th December 2008, who have 
now mobilized the workforce for 
constructing the Project. Work on 
building the necessary infrastructure is 
currently in progress.

•	 Work	on	the	F$34	million	major	
projects to augment the existing 
substation at Kinoya and construct 
three	new	33	kV	substations	at	Qeleloa,	
Komo Park and Nausori is progressing 
according to the work plan. 

•	 Construction	of	the	power	lines	to	
Natadola Bay Resort from FEA’s Maro 
substation is very close to completion 
with commissioning expected in April 
2009.

•	 The	9.3	MW	wood-fired	co-generation	
plant of the independent power 
producer, Tropik Woods Industries 
Limited, was commissioned at its Drasa 
mills in May 2008. The power plant is 
undergoing a few teething problems, 
which are being sorted out by the 
Tropik Woods management.

•	 FEA	completed	the	installation	of	
OPGW (optic fibre ground wire) 
project in June 2008. This project will 
provide 18 dark fibres which serve 
as the backbone communication 
link for FEA, used for voice, data and 
SCADA (Supervisory Controls and Data 
Acquisition) communications for the 
power system network. The spare dark 
fibres will be leased to third parties to 
generate revenue for the Authority.

•	 On	10th	April	2008,	FEA	signed	a	new	
power purchase agreement with 
Elpicon Ltd of Australia to build a new 
hybrid/biomass power station on the 
Coral Coast and sell electricity to the 
Authority.

•	 5,423	prepayment	meters	were	
installed in Tavua, Rakiraki and 
Sigatoka in the Western Division and 
rural areas of Tailevu in the Central 
Division. This will assist customers and 
FEA to achieve a higher level of service 
and efficiency gains through reduced 
costs of Meter Reading. 

•	 FEA	spent	$7.5	million	on	rural	and	
urban power development projects. 
Of this amount, $2.6 million was spent 
on completing 49 rural electrification 
projects and a total of 771 rural 
customers were connected in 2008.

•	 $4.9	million	was	spent	on	completing	
105 urban power development 
projects. Both rural and urban 
power development projects were 
outsourced to a number of external 
contracting companies with satisfying 
results.

•	 The		long-standing	dispute	for	
compensation payments for 
compulsorily acquiring land in 1966 
for building the Kinoya power station 
was settled in full in November 2008.

•	 A	new	user-friendly	Microsoft	based	
Navision Financial Management 
Information System was fully 
commissioned in December 2008. 

•	 FEA,	with	the	technical	assistance	of	
the Japanese Bank for International 
Co-operation (JBIC), carried out 
comprehensive technical feasibility 
studies to identify power development 
potential downstream of the existing 
Wailoa Hydro Power Station.

•	 FEA	reviewed	and	implemented	an	
improved Fleet Policy Manual which 
resulted in a reduction in the number 
of vehicle accidents by 11% and 
reduction in accident repair costs by 
49.8% over 2007.

•	 FEA	achieved	one	of	its	best	safety	
results in 2008. The commitment to 
achieving a continuous improvement 
in safety culture was reflected in a Lost 
Time	Injury	Frequency	Rate	of	just	3.24,	
which	is	an	improvement	of	39%	over	
the previous best record in 2006. 

Key outcomes for 2008
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Members of the Authority

Gardiner Whiteside
Deputy Chairman

Ratu Napolioni Delasau
Member

Ravendra  Maharaj
Member

Isikeli Voceduadua 
Member

Nizam-ud-Dean
Chairman

John Low
Member

Cama Tuiloma
Member

Hasmukh Patel
Ex-officio Member
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Executive Management

Anand Nanjangud
Chief Information Officer

Eparama  Tawake
General Manager Generation

Om Dutt Sharma
General Manager Network

Pio Vunituraga
General Manager 
Human Resources

Ravuni Uluilakeba
General Manager Marketing

Sunil de Silva
Chief Financial Officer

Fatiaki Gibson
General Manager Major 
Projects & Strategy

Tuvitu Delairewa
General Manager 
Corporate Services

Hasmukh Patel
Chief Executive Officer



6

Fiji ElEctricity Authority   AnnuAl rEport 2008

Col. Timoci Lesi Natuva, the Honourable Minister for Works, Transport and 
Public Utilities, having discussions with a Sinohydro Corporation official. 

Col. Natuva is the Line Minister for the Authority.
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Nizam-ud-Dean
Chairman

2008 Profitability

FEA made a financial profit after tax of 
$2.5 million for the year. This is due to a 
net	 income	 tax	 benefit	 of	 $3.7	 million	
resulting mainly from the effect of reduced 
corporate tax rate, from the current rate of 
31%	to	29%	in	2009.	As	a	result,	significant	
net tax benefits have accrued due to 
adjustments made to the Deferred Tax 
Liability and Future Income Tax Benefit 
amounts carried on FEA’s balance sheet. 
Return on Shareholder Funds (ROSF) for 
2008 is positive 0.6%.

FEA incurred a financial loss before tax 
of	 $1.3	 million	 in	 2008,	 partly	 due	 to	 the	
high cost of thermal fuel of $89.2 million 
for the year ($60.0 million in 2007). The 
fuel surcharge framework approved by 
the Commerce Commission in September 
2006 provided revenues of $20.6 million for 
the year. If the fuel surcharge revenue was 
not available to FEA, the pre-tax financial 
result would have been a much greater 
loss of $21.9 million. This illustrates the 
extreme importance of the fuel surcharge 
framework to FEA. 

Three decisions made by the shareholder 
in 2008 on the basis of social and national 
interests impacted FEA adversely as 
follows:

a) Implementation of the tariff rate 
increase approved by the Commerce 
Commission from 1st January 2007 
was	deferred	until	3rd	August	2008;

b) The fuel surcharge rate increase of 2.7 
cents/unit approved by the Commerce 
Commission	 from	 3rd	 June	 2008	 due	
to exorbitant increase in thermal fuel 
prices in mid 2008 was frozen until 
27th	November	2008;	and

c) The full duty free concession for FEA’s 
diesel oil purchases that was in place 
from	2003	was	downgraded	to	a	partial	
duty concession from late 2007.

The above three factors had an aggregate 
negative impact of $16.5 million on FEA’s 
financial performance.

 

chairman’s report

FEA also incurs significant non-commercial 
obligation (NCO) costs each year when 
supplying subsidised electricity to rural 
Viti	Levu	and	to	the	whole	of	Vanua	Levu	
and Ovalau. If FEA was reimbursed by 
the Government for the NCO costs, the 
profitability and return on shareholder 
funds would have been better. It is 
estimated that FEA incurred about $22 
million of NCO costs when fulfilling its 
social obligations in 2008. Although 
the Public Enterprises Act requires the 
Government to reimburse the NCO costs 
to FEA, such costs are not refunded. 
Instead, the Government has accepted, via 
Cabinet decision CP2002 18th Meeting 
dated 10th September 2002, that FEA’s 
non-commercial contribution to social 
and community services through its 
electricity subsidies be recognised as 
its annual dividend to the Government. 
Therefore the deemed dividend paid to 
the Government by FEA for 2008 is about 
$22 million.

A notional adjustment to account for 
the NCO costs would result in an after-
tax financial profit of $17.7 million and a 
return on shareholder funds of positive 
4.4% for the year. 

2008 has been an 
important year, not 
just for the Authority, 
but also for the whole 
nation.  Construction of 
the Nadarivatu renewable 
hydro power project 
commenced in December 
2008 and will add 41 
MW of power capacity to 
the power system when 
completed. This project has 
been accepted as a project 
of national importance by 
the Fiji Government. The 
US$150 million project is 
planned to be completed 
by August 2011. Once 
commissioned, FEA would 
have made significant 
progress towards achieving 
its stated renewable 
energy strategy, which is to 
provide at least 90 per cent 
of its generation through 
the use of sustainable 
renewable energy sources 
by 2011.

Operating Profit/ (Loss)

The profitability of FEA for the period 2001 
to 2008 is illustrated in the graph given 
below:
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With controllable operating costs already reduced and tightly 
managed, and the existing tariff rates being insufficient to 
recover the expensive diesel operating costs, and also with FEA’s 
corporate responsibility to continue to provide cross subsidies 
for rural power supplies despite incurring substantial NCO costs, 
it is essential that the Government continues to support FEA in 
every possible manner to ensure that the long term financial 
sustainability of FEA is maintained. 

In this regard, FEA is pleased that the Government has 
established a working group to investigate the refund of the 
NCO costs incurred by FEA each year. Written approval of the 
Shareholding Ministries has been sought in June 2007 for the 
NCO cost categories as required by the MPSPE&PSR Circular 
No.	3/2007.	It	is	pleasing	to	note	the	undertaking	given	by	the	
Ministry of Public Enterprises that the Government will seriously 
undertake the finalization of FEA’s social obligation costs in 
2009 because funds have been allocated by the Government to 
engage a consultant to assist in the verification of the costing.

Financial Strength

The financial position of FEA remained strong throughout the 
year. FEA’s gearing ratio, as measured by Debt to Debt plus 
Capital	and	Reserves,	was	38.7%	as	at	31st	December	2008,	well	
within the international benchmark for power utilities of about 
45%.	As	at	31st	December	2008,	the	Capital	and	Reserves	made	
up 52.1% of the total assets. The current ratio of current assets 
(excluding cash) to current liabilities (excluding short term debt)  
was	2.8	times.	The	shareholder	value	of	FEA	was	$384.5	million	
and	its	total	assets	were	worth	$737.7	million.	

Progress on renewable energy projects

FEA took over the development of the US$150 million 
Nadarivatu renewable hydro power project after its joint 
venture partner, Pacific Hydro Limited of Australia, pulled out of 
the project in February 2007. Therefore, it is a major compliment 
to FEA that it was able to sign a US$125 million contract with 
Sinohydro Corporation Limited of China to construct the Hydro 
Power Project, for commissioning by August 2011. In addition, FEA 
is also very pleased that it was able to raise the necessary foreign 
currency loans of up to US$100 million to source the off-shore cost 
component for the project, without using any of the limited foreign 
reserves held by the Reserve Bank of Fiji. The planned power 
project has a power capacity of 41 MW and is able to generate 
about 101 million units of electricity in a normal hydro inflow year, 
saving thermal fuel costs and foreign currency leakage estimated in 
excess of F$25 million per year at current oil prices.

FEA’s plans for increased participation of independent power 
producers (IPP) in the electricity generation industry are also 
progressing	well.	The	9.3	MW	wood-fired	co-generation	plant	of	
Tropik Woods at its Drasa mills was commissioned in May 2008. 

A new power purchase agreement was signed with Elpicon Ltd of 
Australia in April 2008 for a new hybrid / biomass power station in 
the Coral Coast. Discussions have also progressed substantially with 
other IPPs such as FSC and Pacific Renewable Energy Ltd of New 
Zealand, and new power purchase agreements are expected to be 
signed in 2009.

FEA, with the technical assistance of  Japanese Bank for 
International Co-operation (JBIC), undertook comprehensive 
technical feasibility studies for developing the power potential 
downstream of the existing Wailoa Power station. Further feasibility 
studies are planned for 2009 before commencing the design work.

Project	development	work	on	the	F$34	million	major	projects	to	
augment the existing substation at Kinoya and construct three new 
33	kV	substations	at	Qeleloa,	Komo	Park	and	Nausori	is	progressing	
smoothly according to the scheduled work plan. 

Construction of the power lines to Natadola Bay Resort from FEA’s 
Maro substation is very close to completion with commissioning 
expected in April 2009.

The adjusted profitability numbers and return on shareholder 
funds are shown below for the period 2001 to 2008. 

2008

2008
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1. Achieve a ROSF of greater than or equal to 2.5% (>=2.5%) 
based	on	Corporate	Plan	assumptions	given	on	page	31	of	
the Corporate Plan for 2008 to 2010 

2. Fully comply with the following statutory requirements: 
 
 a. Submission of 2009 to 2011 Corporate Plan, SCI and   

	 EIRP	by	30	September	2008
 
 b. Submission of half year report for 2008 financial year   

 by 01 August 2008

 c. Submission of draft annual report and un-audited   
	 financial	accounts	for	2007	by	31	March	2008

 d. Submission of the annual report and audited financial  
	 accounts	for	2007	by	30	June	2008

 
3.	 Ensure	all	HR	policies	are	compliant	with	the	new	

Employment	Relations	Promulgation	(ERP)	2007	by	31	
December 2008

 

4. Limit the volume of diesel generation to 40% or less of total 
generation in 2008 subject to Monasavu generating at least 
360	GWh	in	2008	as	per	Corporate	Plan	assumption

 
5. Award contract and mobilize contractor on site for 

Nadarivatu	Hydro	Project	by	31	December	2008
 

6. 75% of all major equipment delivered to site for the four 
Network	Augmentation	projects	by	31	December	2008	

7. Sign a Power Purchase Agreement with at least one (1) new 
Independent	Power	Producer	by	31	December	2008

8. Submit the optimum Staff Resource plan of FEA for approval 
by	the	FEA	Board	by	30	April	2008	

ACHIEVED	SUBJECT	TO	NOTIONAL	ADJUSTMENT	
The audited ROSF for 2008 is positive 0.6%. However, several key 
assumptions in the approved SCI were not met due to social-
based decisions made by the shareholder, as detailed earlier. The 
adverse financial impact on FEA due to Government decisions is 
$16.5 million.

The	ROSF	would	have	been	+	3.5%	if	the	financial	statements	
are adjusted notionally for Government’s decisions made in the 
national interest.

Achieved 29 September 2008

Achieved on 18 July 2008

Achieved	30	March	2008

Achieved 21 June 2008

ACHIEVED	–	The	three	policies	that	needed	to	be	changed	were	
Sexual Harassment Policy, Working Together Policy and Equal 
Employment Opportunities. All these policies have been signed 
by CEO and are now effective. All employment Contracts and 
appointment letters have been amended to comply with ERP.

ACHIEVED	-	The	actual	generation	from	thermal	fuels	was	34%.	
Monasavu generated about 450 GWh in 2008 equal to 62% of 
generation. Wind and IPPs generated 4%.

ACHIEVED	-	Formal	contract	was	signed	with	Sinohydro	
Corporation Limited of China on 8 September 2008 and site 
mobilization has taken place. Foreign currency funding for the 
project has been negotiated and a 40% advance payment has 
been made to Sinohydro.

ACHIEVED	-	The	contract	was	awarded	to	Tenix	Limited	of	New	
Zealand and a fifth project was added for extension of power 
supply to Natadola Bay Resort. The objective has been achieved 
as	at	31	December	2008,	and	Natadola	project	is	very	close	to	
completion with a target date of end April 2009.

ACHIEVED	-	a	PPA	was	signed	on	10	April	2008	with	Elpicon	Ltd	
of Australia for a hybrid/biomass power plant on the Coral Coast.
 
ACHIEVED	-	Staff	resource	plan	was	presented	to	the	FEA	Board	
and approved on 18 March 2008.

Achievement of Board Key Performance Indicators
 
On 26th March 2008, FEA signed eight Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) with the Hon. Minister for Public Enterprises to 
enable the Government to measure the performance of the 
FEA Board. The KPIs were included as part of FEA’s Statement of 
Corporate Intent (SCI) for 2008.

FEA successfully achieved seven out of the eight KPIs. The KPI 
on return on shareholder funds, which was not achieved, would 
have been achieved if adjusted for social-based decisions made 
by the shareholder Government as detailed earlier.
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FEA  places very high importance on addressing the concerns of 
its customers. FEA Customer Service Reperesentatives provide 

services to customers on a daily basis at all major locations.
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Acknowledgement

I would like to take this opportunity to convey my sincere 

appreciation and thanks to the fellow Board Members for their 

continuous support and contributions throughout the year. 

Their commitment and direction was instrumental in ensuring 

that FEA remained focused and on-track to achieve its strategic 

objectives.

I would like to thank all the Cabinet Ministers, especially the 

Minister for Works, Transport & Public Utilities and the Minister 

for Public Enterprises, for their invaluable support to FEA during 

the year. 

I also record my sincere thanks to the Commerce Commission 

for their understanding of FEA’s difficult position and support 

given for continued implementation of the fuel surcharge 

framework throughout 2008.

To all our customers, you are the reason we are here. We 

will continue to explore and implement ways in which we 

can further improve our services to meet or exceed your 

expectations.

To our Management Team and staff, I am highly appreciative 

of your support and contribution during the year. The level 

of dedication and commitment that you and our outsourced 

service providers showed throughout the year has enabled us to 

energise our nation under very challenging conditions.  

Nizam-ud-Dean

Chairman
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Mr Aiyaz Sayed-Khaiyum, the Honourable Minister for Public Enterprises, 
in discussions with a Sinohydro Corporation official during the Nadarivatu 

Renewable Hydro Power Project signing ceremony in September 2008. 
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Customers
Customer Service
The	number	of	customer	accounts	increased	from	139,324	in	December	2007	to	
142,038	in	December	2008.	The	demand	for	electricity	grew	by	1.7	per	cent	from	
706 million units of electricity in 2007 to 718 million units in 2008. 

Tebbutt Research, an independent market research company, undertook the 
2008 customer survey to determine customer satisfaction on FEA’s performance. 
The results showed that FEA’s customer service performance level, measured 
by seven key service attributes (Time to Reconnect, Keeping Supply Stable, 
Keeping Supply On, Speed of Fixing Faults, Keeping Customers Informed, 
Meter Reading and Billing) has improved in 2008 compared to 2007 in all the 
seven key attributes for the Commercial & Industrial sector. The performance 
for the Residential sector has also improved or consistent in 2008 except for 
meter reading and billing.   FEA’s performance level is illustrated in the following 
graphs. 

Despite the improvement shown in its customer service performance level in 
2008, the overall customer satisfaction rating from customers’ perspective was 
shown by the survey to have deteriorated from 80% in 2007 to 71% in 2008. 
This is a substantial deterioration which warranted a detailed analysis by FEA. It 
was found that the survey was conducted a few weeks after FEA implemented 

Review of 2008
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 Despite the major challenges 
faced by the Authority in 2008 
as a result of the exorbitant fuel 
prices, it performed admirably 
well in the key operational areas.

Prudent measures taken to 
reduce expenditure through 
cost cutting in operational areas 
and postponement of non-
critical projects together with 
the optimisation of the water 
usage at the Monasavu dam saw 
FEA through the difficult times 
without affecting the continuity 
of power supply to our valued 
customers.

The Authority made significant 
progress towards achieving its 
stated renewable energy strategy, 
which is to provide at least 90% 
of its generation through the use 
of renewable energy by 2011.  In 
2008, FEA generated 66% of the 
total electricity requirements 
using hydro and wind, purchasing 
power from Tropik Woods (bio 
mass generation) and FSC (during 
crushing season). FEA also  
embarked on constructing the 
Nadarivatu Hydro Power Project.

FEA will not pause in its  journey 
until all its strategic objectives are 
successfully fulfilled.
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the Commerce Commission and Cabinet-approved fuel 
surcharge rate increase. This event is considered to have 
a negative impact on the satisfaction rating given by the 
customers. 

Whilst FEA is pleased with the improvement in its customer 
service performance level, it wishes to keep improving 
its level of service to customers. Accordingly, it has put in 
place appropriate action plans to address the areas for 
improvement highlighted in the survey.

FEA introduced a single contact number concept (telephone 
number	132333)	in	January	2008	for	the	convenience	of	its	
customers. At our Customer Care Centre in Suva, self service 
kiosks were introduced where customers could walk in, pick 
up a phone and be served instantly by a Customer Services 
Representative at the Contact Centre. New Mobile Service 
Centres were setup in Ba, Tavua, Rakiraki and Levuka to 
serve customers in remote areas. Existing Customer Service 
Centres are located at Nadi, Lautoka, Suva, Nausori and 
Labasa.

Contact Centre
Significant improvements were achieved in the 
performance of the Contact Centre. Calls answered within 
20 seconds (Grade of Service) amounted to 86.6% in 
December 2008, against a target of 80%. Abandoned calls 
in	December	2008	were	5.3%,	against	a	target	of	7%.	At	the	
beginning of the year, the Grade of Service was below 75% 
with a 15% call abandoned rate.

Prepayment Meters
In 2008, FEA continued to install prepayment meters in 
both	 Central	 and	 Western	 Viti	 Levu.	 In	 Western	 Viti	 Levu,	
prepayment meters have been installed from Burenitu in 
Ra to the outskirts of the Rakiraki town. Prepayment meters 
have	 also	 been	 installed	 in	 the	 Sigatoka	 Valley	 area.	 In	
Central	Viti	 Levu,	 prepayment	 meters	 have	 been	 installed	
for	 all	 domestic	 customers	 from	 QVS	 to	 the	 outskirts	 of	
Korovou and along the Nausori-Korovou corridor. A total of 
13,500	domestic	customers	now	have	prepayment	meters.	
The system has proven to be popular with many rural 
customers requesting to convert to the new prepayment 
meter system. 

Product Awareness
Energy saving tips, vegetation management and a 
heightened awareness of electrical safety continued to be 
the main focus in FEA’s customer communication activities 
during the year, using both media advertising and the Fiji 
Showcase. FEA exhibited all of its products and services 
at the Fiji Showcase in July 2008 where more than 20 
corporate and small businesses participated. 

In addition, presentations to our top 100 Business 
customers in the Central and Western Divisions in July 
2008 created strong awareness of the low water level 
at Monasavu and the need to conserve energy. The 
customers were also requested to assist FEA by running 
their own diesel generators to avoid the possibility of 
power supply shortages and power rationing to the 
country. We wish to thank our large customers for the 
support provided to FEA during the crisis period.

Demand Side Management
FEA is committed to assist its customers to become 
more energy efficient, and use energy responsibly. FEA’s 
Demand Side Management (DSM) section is responsible 
for providing technical assistance and also for spreading 
awareness of energy efficiency. In 2008, the section 
completed two energy audits for the Holiday Inn and 
Tanoa Hotels. The report provided these two customers 
with an in-depth knowledge of their energy consumption 
trends and gave detailed recommendations on how they 
could reduce their energy consumption. The section 
also worked closely with the Ministry of Education. FEA 
was invited to present to the Principals’ Conference to 
share principles of energy management. In addition, FEA 
published a energy conservation brochure in conjunction 
with the Consumer Council and AusAid. 

Electricity Tariff & Fuel Surcharge
The third and last phase of the tariff increase of 
approximately one cent per unit approved by the 
Commerce Commission in 2004, to be implemented 
effective from 1st January 2007, had been put on hold 
from 2007 as instructed by the Interim Government. The 
increase was ultimately approved for implementation 
by the Cabinet in July 2008, and implemented from 6th 
August 2008. There were no increases for Residential 
customers consuming less than 250kWh per month, Street 
Lighting and Institutions.

Throughout 2008, FEA continued to apply the fuel 
surcharge framework approved by the Commerce 
Commission	in	September	2006.	On	3rd	June	2008,	the	
Commerce Commission approved to increase the fuel 
surcharge	rate	from	2.83	cents	per	unit	to	5.53	cents	per	
unit, due to substantial increases in the price of thermal 
fuels and deteriorating water level at Monasavu.  However, 
the Government requested to freeze the surcharge rate 
until further notice. In November 2008, the Cabinet gave 
approval	to	increase	the	fuel	surcharge	rate	to	5.53	cents	
per unit, as approved by the Commerce Commission 
in June 2008. This increase was implemented on 27th 
November 2008.
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Rural Electrification and Urban Development
In 2008, FEA spent $7.5 million on rural and urban power 
development projects. Of this amount, $2.6 million was 
spent on completing 49 rural electrification projects and a 
total of 771 rural customers were connected in 2008. 

$4.9 million was spent on completing 105 urban power 
development projects. Both rural and urban power 
development projects were outsourced to a number of 
external contracting companies with satisfying results.

Cost sharing between Government and FEA funded 
programmes continued to cover the expenditure required 
for rural electrification work.

Staff and Industrial Relations

Staff numbers
2008 was a challenging year for FEA in terms of its human 
resource level. The Authority started 2008 with a low level 
of 569 employees, compared to over 1,100 employees in 
2001. The level of staffing was really put to the test at the 
end of January 2008, when Cyclone Gene caused severe 
damage to FEA’s power system and other infrastructure. 
Through substantial efforts of its staff, FEA was able to 
restore power to 99% of its customers within a month after 
the cyclone. However, the efforts required during the power 
restoration work indicated to the senior management and 
to the Board that the staffing level needs to be reviewed in 
order to ensure adequacy  of human resources and build 
human capacity of the company, as opposed to downsizing. 
Based on a comprehensive ‘greenfield’ evaluation, the Board 
approved to increase the staff numbers to 720, which was 
considered to be the optimum level of staffing to meet the 
current operational requirements. Strategies have since been 
implemented which include recruiting trainees in the key 
areas identified above including electricians, technicians 
and linemen. In addition, FEA has re-established the 
apprenticeship scheme to ensure scarce skills are developed 
through appropriate hands-on training.

With the new approved organization structure, FEA 
embarked on a recruitment drive focused on ensuring that 
the best people are recruited to fill the vacancies. In view 
of this, the staff numbers increased from 569 at the start of 
the year to 649 at the end of year. However, FEA continued 
to lose experienced and skilled people through migration, 
especially to the energy industries in Australia and New 
Zealand. The staff turnover rate for 2008 was high at 15% 
when compared to 12% in 2007 and 7% in 2006. Whilst the 
high staff turnover is of great concern to FEA, it is reassuring 
for FEA that those who have migrated have easily found 
employment in Australia and New Zealand and this speaks 

volume of the high quality of the staff development and 
training programs that these workers have gone through 
to allow them to be competitive worldwide. FEA continues 
to implement strategies to ensure that there is always 
continuity in terms of skills and experience.   

Staff training
153	Training	programmes	were	conducted	in	2008	for	the	
development of employees. Of these, 120 programmes 
were	conducted	in-house	by	FEA	Training	Team	and	33	
programmes were conducted by external training providers. 
All employees attended an average of two training 
programmes during the year.

14	existing	live-line	workers	underwent	High	Voltage	(up	to	
33kV)	Live	Line	re-authorisation	training	in	2008.	In	addition,	
six	line	workers	completed	their	on–the–job	assessment	
programme and were certified as live-line workers up to 
33kV.

Sponsorship of employees to pursue Bachelor of 
Engineering degree courses in Electrical & Mechanical 
Engineering at the Auckland University of Technology (AUT) 
continued in 2008.Two employees who underwent the 
programme in 2007 have graduated in early 2009 and have 
rejoined the workforce as Graduate Engineers.

Employees continue to be sponsored to undergo Diploma 
and Advanced Diploma programmes in Electrical and 
Mechanical Engineering at the Fiji Institute of Technology 
(FIT). In 2008, a total of eleven employees were sponsored to 
undertake full time studies towards diploma and advanced 
diploma programmes at FIT.

165 industrial student attachments from various institutions 
in Fiji were engaged by FEA in 2008.

Apart from the above training programs, staff also continued 
with their own development programs in the various areas 
of their interest which include Diplomas, Degrees and Post 
Graduate studies. 

Succession Planning
With the succession planning framework in place, the 
Executive Management Team identified a pool of talented 
Departmental Managers to be trained and groomed as 
future General Managers. A pool of Team Leaders was also 
identified as potential Departmental Managers. Training and 
development opportunities for these managers have been 
identified and will be implemented to prepare them for 
future managerial and leadership positions. 
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In 2008, FEA progressed with the implementation of the 
prepayment	meters	in	remote	locations	of	Viti	Levu.		This	will	

assist customers and FEA to achieve a higher level  of service and 
efficiency gains through reduced costs of meter reading.
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Inculcating FEA values
FEA places great importance on inculcating its core values 
to all its employees, as part of its Mission Statement.  All 
new Board Members and new employees go through 
a comprehensive induction course with a special focus 
on FEA’s core values. During annual appraisals of staff 
performance, all employees are assessed on their 
commitment to these core values. An Employee Code of 
Conduct was approved by the FEA Board in 2008 and is 
now being implemented.

Industrial Relations
2008 herald a new direction in the Industrial Relations 
framework for the nation and FEA. The Employment 
Relation Promulgation (ERP) was promulgated and 
enacted during the year. The new promulgation 
introduced the concept of good faith bargaining which 
revolutionized industrial relations in our workplace. 
Training was conducted for management and employees 
alike to ensure that everyone was aware of the 
requirements of the ERP. Policies, employment contracts 
and collective agreements were amended to ensure 
compliance to the legislation.

Relationship between FEA and the three Unions continued 
to remain cordial and improve throughout the year.  There 
were numerous meetings held in terms of simultaneous 
negotiations on the Log of Claims.  As a result, separate 
agreements were signed between FEA and two Unions 
while negotiations continue with the third Union. 
Negotiations also took place with the three Unions to 
ensure the Collective Agreements were aligned to the new 
ERP. There was no strike action in 2008.   

Health, Safety and Environment
FEA is committed to supporting a total Health, Safety and 
Environmental improvement culture where all employees 
have the necessary tools, methods and personal attributes 
to actively care for the safety of their own and their co-
workers.

This commitment and drive, led by the Board and the 
executive management, resulted in FEA achieving one 
of its best safety results ever. However, FEA is totally 
focused on a continuous improvement culture to achieve 
the ultimate goal, which is “SAFE PRODUCTION, ZERO 
INCIDENTS”.

A thorough review and rollout of a new Fleet Policy 
manual was completed with the focus to assist FEA’s 
drivers perform their driving safely and professionally 
in order to protect themselves, other employees and 

members of the public from risks arising out of fleet 
operations.  This saw significant improvements in fleet 
performance over 2007 with the number of vehicle 
accidents in 2008 reduced by 11% and accident repair 
costs reduced dramatically by 49.8%.
 
Low Risk four wheel driver training and Defensive driver 
training were conducted for authorised FEA drivers.

There were four Lost Time Injuries in 2008, which is a 
reduction	of	43%	over	FEA’s	previous	best	record	for	
personal safety, achieved in 2006. The Lost Time Injury 
Frequency	Rate	was	3.24,	a	reduction	of	39%	on	the	2006	
record.  Lost Days for injuries incurred in 2008 was fifty 
three, a reduction of 52% on the 2006 record. 

A Contractor HSE Management System was developed 
with the relevant tools to ensure FEA’s Contractors meet 
minimum legislative requirements and comply with 
FEA’s policies and standards.  Training of Contractors has 
commenced in 2008 and full roll out will be completed in 
2009.

Internally, a rigorous hazard identification and corrective/
improvement action register continues to be maintained 
and monitored.  HSE System Awareness Training and 
Inductions were conducted with new employees.  
HSE committees continue to fulfil an important role 
by performing their function effectively.  A total of 
twenty eight near misses, incidents and accidents were 
investigated by the HSE team and recommendations 
tabled and registered as corrective/improvement actions.

Production

Water Management
The storage level of the Monasavu lake at the beginning of 
2008	was	731	metres	above	mean	sea	level	(AMSL),	which	
was 16 metres above the minimum safe operating level of 
715 metres. This level is almost at the mid-point between 
the maximum and minimum levels of the reservoir.

Heavy rainfall during Cyclone Gene at the end of January 
2008 helped to increase the storage level to 741.8 metres 
(AMSL),	just	3.2	metres	below	the	maximum	level.	

Below average rainfall from February to May 2008 caused 
the	water	level	at	Monasavu	to	fall	to	733.8	metres	(AMSL),	
and FEA was compelled to reduce the level of hydro 
generation from Wailoa and to replace it with expensive 
thermal fuel. Although high rainfall was received in the 
month of June 2008, the inflows in July and August 2008 
were average and inflow in September 2008 was below 
average. 
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FEA workmen provide 24-hour service to ensure 
minimum power disruptions to customers. 
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Monasavu DaM  stoRage LeveL

Wailoa	power	station	generated	463	Giga	Watt-hours	(GWh)	
in 2008 and Wainikasou power station, situated upstream of 
the Monasavu dam, generated 18 GWh.  Total rainfall in 2008 
was	5,320	mm	compared	with	5,289	mm	in	2007.	The	lowest	
ever	rainfall	recorded	is	3,540	mm	in	2004.		

The	storage	level	at	the	end	of	December	2008	was	723.5	
metres (AMSL), just 8.5 metres above the minimum safe 
operating level.

By the end of October 2008, the lake level had deteriorated to 
such an alarmingly low level of 721 metres (AMSL), that FEA 
had no other option but to inform the customers of a potential 
power shortage situation.  FEA’s request for its customers to 
minimise the power consumption, combined with initiatives 
taken by large customers to run their own diesel generator 
sets on FEA’s request until the situation improves, helped to 
avoid power shortages in 2008.
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The average generation mix for 2008 was 62.1  per cent hydro, 
33.8	per	cent	diesel,	0.6	per	cent	wind	with	the	other	3.5	per	
cent	provided	by	the	two	independent	power	producers;	
Tropik Woods and Fiji Sugar Corporation. In comparison, 64.8 
per	cent	was	generated	from	hydro	in	2007,	32.5	per	cent	
from	diesel,	0.4	per	cent	from	wind	with	the	other	2.3	per	cent	
from the two independent power producers.
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As part of its continuing efforts to improve power system reliability, FEA  
frequently inspects transmission structures at remote locations, as seen 

here	with	the	relocation	of	a	33kv	structure	to	improve	safety.		
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Power System Reliability
Three internationally accepted performance indicators are 
used each year to measure FEA’s power system reliability:

•	 The	total	length	of	time	that	a	customer	is	without	
power over a year is measured by the System Average 
Interruption Duration Index (SAIDI).  This has improved 
by	28	per	cent	in	2008,	from	2,537	minutes	in	2007	to	
1,810 minutes in 2008. 

•	 The	average	number	of	times	that	a	customer’s	power	
supply is interrupted in a year is measured by the System 
Average Interruption Frequency Index (SAIFI).  This index 
improved slightly in 2008, decreasing from 27.8 times in 
2007 to 25.6 times in 2008, but a significant improvement 
from	2004	of	35	times.	

•	 The	average	time	that	a	customer	is	without	power	
per-interruption is measured by the Customer Average 
Interruption Duration Index (CAIDI). This index improved 
in 2008, decreasing from 91 minutes in 2007 to 71 
minutes in 2008. 

The improvement in the reliability indices recorded in 2008 
was	partly	due	to	FEA’s	Vegetation	Management	program	
which is showing good results. The result of a partnership 
with the Contractors has provided instant benefits where the 
outages caused by vegetation have drastically reduced. 

FEA has to improve its efforts in the area of Transmission Line 
inspection and Hardware replacement. The elimination of 
corroded line Hardware will reduce the outages and improve 
the system reliability figures.

Main reasons for the power interruptions that occurred in 
2008 were:

•	 Planned	maintenance	works	on	overhead	lines	and	
underground cable (27 per cent)

•	 Natural	disasters	e.g.	flood,	lightning,	landslide	etc.	(10	
per cent)

•	 Faults	on	line	hardware	(26	per	cent)
•	 Vegetation	interfering	with	lines	(3	per	cent)
•	 Faults	on	generators	(13	per	cent)
•	 Miscellaneous	(21	per	cent)

Although some improvements were achieved in 2008, FEA’s 
focus is to find permanent solutions to the causes of power 
outages in order to improve the reliability of power supply to 
international utility benchmarks of similar size.

The initiatives FEA is currently progressing include:

•	 Live-line	maintenance	of	its	power	lines	at	all	voltage	
levels;

•	 Effective	vegetation	management	programme;
•	 Use	of	appropriate	technology	to	detect	defects	that	can	

be fixed on time and equipment that can restore power 
supply	quickly;	and

•	 Ensuring	that	adequate	supply	capacity	is	available	to	
meet the demand for electricity at all times.

Financial Performance

Profitability
FEA made a financial profit after tax of $2.5 million for the 
year.	This	is	due	to	a	net	income	tax	benefit	of	$3.7	million		
resulting mainly from the effect of reduced corporate tax 
rate,	from	the	current	rate	of	31%	to	29%	in	2009.	As	a	result,	
significant net tax benefits have accrued due to adjustments 
made to the Deferred Tax Liability and Future Income Tax 
Benefit amounts carried on FEA’s Balance Sheet. Return on 
Shareholder Funds (ROSF) for 2008 is positive 0.6%.

FEA	incurred	a	financial	loss	before	tax	of	$1.3	million	in	
2008, partly due to the high cost of thermal fuel of $89.2 
million for the year ($60.0 million in 2007). The fuel surcharge 
framework approved by the Commerce Commission in 
September 2006 provided revenues of $20.6 million for the 
year. If the fuel surcharge revenue was not available to FEA, 
the pre-tax financial result would have been a much greater 
loss of $21.9 million. 

There are two shareholder factors that contributed to the 
pre-tax financial loss in 2008:

•	 Firstly,	several	decisions	made	by	the	shareholder	on	
social and national interests impacted FEA adversely 
by $16.5 million in 2008 alone, as explained in the 
Chairman’s Report.

•	 Secondly,	the	Non	Commercial	Obligation	(NCO)	costs	
of about $22 million incurred by FEA when fulfilling its 
social obligations in 2008 were not refunded to FEA, as 
required by the Public Enterprises Act. 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 
(EBITDA)	for	2008	were	$36.2	million.	This	provided	an	
EBITDA net interest coverage ratio of 4.29 times.
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Revenue from electricity sales for 2008 was $159.4 million 
compared to $147.8 million in 2007, an increase of $11.6 
million.  This is due to a reduction in discount allowed 
to customers of $6.4 million as a result of abolishing the 
electricity savings campaign and increase in revenue of $5.2 
million due to the implementation of the electricity tariff 
increase	of	approximately	one	cent	per	unit	from	3rd	August	
2008.
 

The net thermal fuel cost increased by $29.2 million in 2008, 
from $60.0 million in 2007 to $89.2 million in 2008. The 
thermal fuel cost accounted for 50.2 per cent of FEA’s total 
operating expenses of $178 million in 2008 compared with 
40.9 per cent in 2007. 

Depreciation expense increased by $1.6 million in 2008 
due to depreciation of the Butoni wind farm and the heavy 
fuel oil conversion project at Kinoya for the full 2008 year 
compared to partial depreciation in 2007, when the assets 
were originally capitalised.

Net financing costs increased by $1.1 million in 2008, from 
$7.3	million	in	2007	to	$8.4	million	in	2008.	This	is	due	to	the	
increase in net borrowings during the year of $55.6 million 
to fund the Nadarivatu renewable hydro power project. The 
borrowings include a commercial foreign currency loan 
from	the	ANZ	Bank	amounting	to	US$30	million.	The	Fiji	
Government guarantees FEA’s loans and the guarantee fees 
incurred in 2008 was $0.6 million.

A	net	income	tax	benefit	of	$3.7	million	has	been	
recognized in FEA’s financial statements for 2008 and is 
due to significant net tax benefits resulting from the effect 
of reduced corporate tax rate of 29% in 2009 on deferred 
tax liability and future income tax benefit carried on FEA’s 
Balance Sheet.

Electricity generated from the thermal power stations 
increased by 14 GWh in 2008, from 256 GWh in 2007 to 270 
GWh in 2008, and contributed to the significant increase of 
$29.2 million in thermal fuel costs in 2008. This increase in 
diesel cost could be attributed to two reasons:

Other operating revenue of $24.8 million in 2008 was higher 
by	$4.5	million	compared	to	the	$20.3	million	earned	in	2007.		
One reason for the increase in 2008 is due to the increase in 
fuel surcharge revenue by about $5.5 million, due to increase 
in fuel surcharge rate as a result of exorbitant increase in 
global thermal fuel prices in 2008. Income from other sources 
declined slightly in 2008. 

Total operating expenses of FEA excluding fuel costs and 
depreciation increased by $0.5 million in 2008, from $59.0 
million in 2007 to $59.5 million in 2008. 
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Firstly, the total hydro generation decreased from 508 GWh 
in 2007 to 495 GWh in 2008, requiring increased generation 
using expensive thermal fuel. The Wailoa hydro power 
station	generated	481	GWh	in	2007,	higher	than	the	463	
GWh it generated in 2008. Total quantity of diesel burn in 
2008	was	38,112	tonnes	and	HFO	burn	was	21,096	tonnes,	
aggregating to 59,208 tonnes. In comparison, the total 
quantity	of	diesel	burn	in	2007	was	47,223	tonnes	and	HFO	
burn	was	6,448	tonnes,	aggregating	to	53,671	tonnes.	This	is	
an	increase	of	5,537	tonnes	in	2008.				
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Financial Strength
The financial position of FEA remained strong throughout 
the year. FEA’s gearing ratio, as measured by Debt to Debt 
plus	Capital	and	Reserves,	was	38.7%	as	at	31st	December	
2008, well within the international benchmark for power 
utilities	of	about	45%.	As	at	31st	December	2008,	the	Capital	
and Reserves made up 52.1% of the total assets. The current 
ratio of current assets (excluding cash) to current liabilities 
(excluding short term debt)  was 2.8 times. The shareholder 
value	of	FEA	was	$384.5	million	and	its	total	assets	were	
worth	$737.7	million.	

Reduction of the corporate income tax rate from the current 
31%	to	29%	in	2009	required	the	Deferred	Tax	Liability	
and Future Income Tax Benefit carried on FEA’s Balance 
Sheet to be re-stated. The net income tax effect due to the 
adjustments was taken to the Income Statement of FEA, 
resulting	in	a	net	income	tax	benefit	of	$3.7	million.

Capital Expenditure & Funding
FEA spent $122 million on capital expenditure in 2008, 
compared with $55.4 million in 2007. Expenditure on major 
projects include $82.7 million on Nadarivatu, $16.9 million on 
network augmentation projects and $18.5 million on rural 
electrification and urban reticulation projects. 

During the year, significant progress was made to obtain 
foreign currency loans for funding the Nadarivatu hydro 
power project. A loan facility agreement was formally signed 
with	ANZ	Bank	for	a	US$30	million	loan,	and	the	total	amount	
was drawn-down on 17th December 2008. A loan agreement 
in-principle was also signed with China Development Bank 
on 8th September 2008 for a US$70 million loan. As at 
31st	December	2008,	the	loan	facility	agreement	has	been	
finalized and formal signing is planned for early 2009.

FEA also issued bonds in the domestic market amounting to 
$50 million to fund the local component of the Nadarivatu 
Hydro Project and ensure availability of funds to fund other 
investment projects. 

An	advance	payment	of	US$43.8	million	was	made	on	17th	
December	2008	to	Sinohydro	Corporation	Limited	of	China;	
the contractor appointed to construct the Nadarivatu hydro 
power	project.	The	ANZ	loan	of	US$30	million	was	fully	
utilized	in	this	regard.	The	shortfall	amount	of	US$13.8	million	
was purchased from the Reserve Bank of Fiji on the condition 
that a similar amount will be sold back to the Reserve Bank 
immediately after drawing-down the loan from China 
Development Bank. We take this opportunity to thank the 
Reserve Bank of Fiji for their support to FEA.

Secondly, prices of thermal fuel increased exorbitantly 
during mid 2008. The average price of diesel was $1,681 per 
tonne in 2008 compared to $1,146 per tonne in 2007.  The 
diesel price peaked at $2,140 per tonne in August 2008. 
The average price for HFO was $1,189 per tonne in 2008 
compared with $916 per tonne in 2007.
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In June 2008, FEA completed the installation of OPGW on its 
transmission	towers	from	Vuda	to	Cunningham	via	Wailoa.		

The embedded 18-pair optic fibres will form FEA’s backbone 
communication link for the power system network.
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Risk Management and Insurance
FEA continued its emphasis on the application and 
implementation of best practice risk management strategies 
across its business. A review of the Authority’s Top Business 
Risks was conducted on 12th August 2008. FEA’s partners 
who participated in the 2005 review were again present 
to assist FEA in this review. The workshop endorsed that 
a lot of hard work has been put into managing FEA’s top 
business risks and the 2008 results clearly indicated this. It 
was acknowledged that FEA has managed most of the risks 
very well while there were some risks that need continuous 
management. 

A detailed report titled Managing FEA Top Business Risks 
2008 was presented and endorsed by the Board and Action 
Plans have been developed to mitigate the top business 
risks. The target for 2009 is to reduce the risk levels of each 
identified risk by at least one level. 

FEA also continued with the external Riscore Programme 
at its main critical sites at the Wailoa Power Station, Kinoya 
Power	Station,	Labasa	Power	Station,	Vuda	Power	Station	
and the National Control Centre in its quest to manage the 
risks at these very critical power facilities. The improvements 
in	scores	for	the	five	sites	range	from	3%	to	6%.	FEA	also	
continued with its internal risk audit and the results have 
also been very positive. 

In	July	2008,	Beca	Valuations	of	NZ	conducted	an	asset	
valuation for insurance purposes based on replacement 
values. FEA’s asset replacement values for the insured assets 
increased	from	$561	million	in	2003	to	$825	million	in	
2008. In September 2008, FEA renewed its main insurance 
programmes for another year after the insurers were 
satisfied with FEA’s business operations, including the level 
of maintenance of the assets and the controls that are in 
place to minimize or mitigate risk.  

Power & Transmission Development

FEA’s Generation Projects
In September 2008, a contract to construct the 40MW 
Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project was awarded 
to Sino Hydro Corporation Limited of China. When 
commissioned in August 2011, the renewable generation 
output from the power station will greatly assist FEA to 
move towards achieving its renewable energy target of 
90% from renewable resources by 2011. Construction of 
the power station has commenced with the contractor now 
mobilized at the construction site.

FEA is in the process of appointing a supervising engineer 
to assist FEA in the supervision and management of 
the construction activities for Nadarivatu. Tenders for a 
consultant to assist in the application to obtain approval for 
carbon credits for the project under the Clean Development 
Mechanism have been prepared and will be issued in early 
2009.

Expressions of interest for power development at Salt Lake, 
Savusavu, using Tidal energy was advertised and will close in 
early 2009.

FEA, with the assistance of Japanese Bank for International 
Co-operation, completed feasibility studies to identify 
additional power generation opportunities downstream 
of the Monasavu Hydro Power scheme, using the water 
outflows from the existing hydro power station at Wailoa.

Augmentation of the Transmission Grid
A major capital project to augment FEA’s transmission grid 
was awarded to the Tenix Alliance of New Zealand at a cost 
of	F$34	million.	The	project	consisted	of	building	three	new	
substations and expand one existing substation. Most of 
the major plant and equipment have been manufactured, 
factory acceptance tests have been carried out and had 
arrived in Fiji by the end of 2008.

In addition to the above four projects, FEA was also 
contracted by Natadola Bay Resort Limited to augment FEA’s 
network to supply power to the new resort. The Natadola 
substation construction was 80% complete at the end of 
2008 and is expected to be commissioned in Apil 2009.

FEA has continued to investigate the second high voltage 
transmission	line	at	132	kV	to	supplement	the	existing	
132	kV	line.	A	preliminary	line	route	has	been	mapped	out	
through a technical assistance grant received from the Asian 
Development Bank (ADB) and it is envisaged that the tender 
documents will be ready by mid 2009.

Independent Power Producers
FEA continues to encourage Independent Power Producers 
(IPPs) to enter Fiji’s electricity generation sector. A new power 
purchase agreement was signed with Elpicon Australia 
Limited for a hybrid / biomass power plant in the Coral Coast. 

The Tropik Drasa IPP biomass plant commenced commercial 
operations in May 2008.
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Construction of the Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro 
Power Project commenced in December 2008 with the 

mobilisation on site of the Contractor, Sinohydro.
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Improvement of the Current Network
In order to improve system performance, Capacitor Banks 
were installed at Rakiraki and Korovou.  These Capacitor 
Banks will reduce the use of diesel generation at these 
stations whilst improving the performance level.

At	Sigatoka,	new	33kV	feeders	were	commissioned	with	
new protection relays to improve the reliability of existing 
network.
 
Other Improvements
The SCADA master station at the National Control Centre 
in	Vuda	was	upgraded	to	receive	more	information	from	
the power system, especially from the Northern Division. 
Together with this, an Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) 
unit was installed to maintain integrity of the power supply 
to the computers in events of major blackouts.

To	increase	the	reliability	of	the	current	132kV	network,	a	
protection relay upgrade project was undertaken and the 
design works have been completed. The project is expected 
to be completed in 2009.

Information & Communication Technology

FEA commissioned the OPGW (OPtical fibre Ground Wire) 
cable	installed	on	the	132	kV	Transmission	line	between	
Suva	and	Vuda.	This	helped	the	communication	backbone	
capabilities of FEA to be more robust. Several leased circuits 
from Telecom Fiji Ltd were disconnected and replaced with 
FEA’s own fibre, resulting in substantial cost savings. 

A	new	V-SAT	(Very	Small	Aperture	Terminal)	communication	
link was established between Suva and Savusavu using TFL’s 
satellite	communication	technology	to	improve	Voice	&	Data	
communications to Savusavu. 

The upgraded SCADA System was commissioned and the 
Disaster Recovery Centre (DRC) capabilities were tested 
successfully. The DRC at Navutu, Lautoka, is now fully 
functional and National Control Centre (NCC) can now be 
operated from Navutu. Many substations were transferred 
to operate on fibre backbone resulting in considerable 
improvement to the reliability of the SCADA System. Taladrau 
and	Vuda	repeater	stations	were	refurbished	to	improve	
power supply back-up capabilities for system reliability, 
especially during adverse weather conditions. A new UPS 
unit	was	installed	at	NCC,	Vuda,	for	better	system	control	&	
operations of Telecommunications/SCADA System during 
blackouts. 

High	system	performance	level	of	99.3%	was	achieved	in	IT	
system operations level. A new UPS System was installed at 
Head Office Server room in Suva to improve performance. 
A new Gigabit  Core Switch was also installed at the Head 
Office to improve IT Network performance and to have 
redundancy. The Information Security Systems were 
reviewed and improvements are in progress in accordance 
with recommendations by Consultants. At the Kinoya 
power station, four new servers were installed to build DRC 
capabilities for critical business systems - Navision (Financial 
Accounting System), Gentrack (Electricity Billing System), 
HRIS (Human Resource Information System) and E-mail. 

Corporate Services

Supply Chain 
FEA achieved a stock-turnover ratio of 22% in 2008, which is 
well above the target level of 6%, indicating more effective 
and efficient usage of its stock items, thereby reducing the 
total stockholding level of FEA to $10 million at the end of 
2008 compared to $12.4 million in 2007.

The average tender turnaround time improved to 5.7 weeks 
as compared to the target of 6 weeks. 

As part of an initiative to reduce FEA’s motor vehicle 
accidents caused by over-speeding, Driver Speed Alert 
Devices (DSAD) were installed in approximately 68% of FEA’s 
vehicle	Fleet.	Vehicle	accident	statistics	for	2008	reveal	a	
marked improvement compared to previous years, and the 
use of DSAD devices is considered to be one of the main 
contributing factors for this improvement.

Regulatory
The Regulatory arm of FEA is responsible for the regulation 
and enforcement of the Electricity Act for the Electricity 
Industry in Fiji. This function includes the approval of all 
electrical appliances and fittings used in Fiji, licensing 
of new Independent Power Producers (IPP), licensing of 
electricians and electrical contractors, and ensuring industry 
compliance via the work of electrical installation inspectors, 
in accordance with the Electricity Act.

There	were	265	registered	licensed	electricians	and	2,139	
registered licensed electrical contractors operating in Fiji at 
the end of 2008.

Altogether, 4,725 domestic and 1,019 commercial 
connections were made in 2008.
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A decision by the Government to transfer the Regulatory 
Function from FEA to an appropriate Government agency 
has not been made yet, although FEA is pro-actively 
promoting this initiative. The Government has commissioned 
a consultant through ADB technical assistance funds in 2008 
to undertake a study and make recommendations on the 
implementation of the transfer.

Acknowledgement

2008 is a year where FEA took a major step towards 
achieving its stated renewable energy target of generating 
90% of its total demand by using renewable energy sources 
by 2011. 

I thank the Chairman and the Board of Directors for their 
guidance and constructive support given to the Chief 
Executive Officer and to the executive management team. 

I wish to record my thanks and appreciation to my 
colleagues in the executive management team and to all 
the employees of our organisation and our external service 
providers for their continuing support, dedication and 
patience. 

I wish to thank our customers who are the reason for FEA’s 
existence. We will do our utmost to satisfy your needs 
through improved customer service, good communication 
and quick resolution of issues faced by you.

I also record my sincere thanks and appreciation to other 
key stakeholders including the Cabinet Ministers, Permanent 
Secretaries and Government officials, the Reserve Bank of Fiji, 
the Commerce Commission and Trade Union Executives.

Your efforts made it easier for FEA to rise above the 
challenges faced during the year and perform exceptionally 
well.

I look forward to continued support from everyone, and 
delivering increased value to our shareholder and all our 
stakeholders in the coming year.

Hasmukh Patel
Chief Executive Officer



29

Fiji ElEctricity Authority    AnnuAl rEport 2008

Statement by Members of the Authority 31  

Independent audit  report 32

Income statement 33  

Balance sheet 34  

Cash flow statement 35  

Statement of changes in capital and reserves  36

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 37-58

Financial Statements



30

Fiji ElEctricity Authority   AnnuAl rEport 2008

FEA commissioned a new user-friendly Microsoft based Navision 
Financial Management Information System in December 2008, which 

will bring significant benefits to the Authority. 
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STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

In accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Fiji Electricity Authority, in the opinion of the Members:

       

1. the financial statements and accompanying notes show a true and fair view of the financial position, results 

of operations,  changes in capital and reserves and cash flows of the Fiji Electricity Authority as at and for 

the	year	ended	31	December	2008.

       

       

2. the statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Electricity Act 1966 (Cap 180) 

and International Financial Reporting Standards.

       

       

3.	 the	basis	of	preparation	of	the	accounts	and	the	classification	and	carrying	amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities	

as stated in these accounts are appropriate.

    

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

 25 May 2009, Suva      

       

       

       

       

 

      

 Nizam-ud-Dean  Gardiner Whiteside   

 CHAIRMAN  DEPUTY CHAIRMAN   
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Scope

I	have	audited	the	financial	statements	of	the	Fiji	Electricity	Authority	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2008		in	accordance	

with	the	provisions	of	the		Electricity	Act	1966	and	Section	13	of	the	Audit	Act.	The	financial	statements	consist	of	

the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Capital and Reserves and the 

accompanying	notes,	on	pages	33-58.	The	Authority	is	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	presentation	of	the	financial	

statements and the information they contain.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements.

My audit has been conducted in accordance with Fiji Standards on Auditing to provide reasonable assurance as to 

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. My procedures included examination, on a test basis, 

of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the financial statements and the evaluation of accounting 

policies and significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, 

in all material respects, the financial statements are presented fairly in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards and statutory requirements, so as to present a view which is consistent with my understanding of the 

Authority’s financial position, the results of its operations and its cash flows.      

 

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.     

 

Audit Opinion

In my opinion:      

a) proper books of accounts have been kept by the Fiji Electricity Authority, so far as it appears from my examination  

 of those books, and        

b) the accompanying financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial  

 Reporting Standards: 

	 (i)	 are	in	agreement	with	the	books	of	account;	 	 	 	 	 	

 (ii) to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me:    

     

	 	 a)	 give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Fiji	Electricity	Authority	as	at	31	December	2008	and	of

	 	 	 the	results,		movement	in	reserves	and	cash	flows	of	the	Authority	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date;	and

  b) give the information required by the Electricity Act 1966 (Cap 180) in the manner so required.   

  

I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for 

the purposes of my audit. 

       

       

     

Suva, Fiji Tevita Bolanavanua 

25 May 2009 Acting Auditor General  

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008
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 Notes  2008  2007    
  $’000   $’000   
     
Revenue	-	electricity	sales	 3	 	159,439		 147,768	
Other	operating	revenue	 3	 	24,778		 20,258	
    
Total revenue   184,217  168,026 
     
  
Personnel	costs	 	 	(17,310)	 	(17,444)
Fuel costs   (89,250)  (60,016)
Electricity purchases   (12,984)  (9,969)
Lease and rent expenses   (1,905)  (2,662)
Depreciation	and	amortisation	 11	 	(29,013)	 	(27,400)
Other	operating	expenses	 	 	(27,303)	 	(28,956)
  
Total operating expenses   (177,765)  (146,447)
     
  
Profit from operating activities   6,452  21,579 
     
Finance	cost	 	 	(9,371)	 (8,292)
Interest	income	 	 	932		 1,017	
  
Operating profit/(loss) before income tax and interest in 4  (1,987)  14,304
joint venture  
     
Share	of	profit	of	joint	venture	 	 	717	 	352	
     
Operating profit/(loss) before income tax    (1,270)  14,656 
     
Income	tax	(expense)/benefit	 5(a)	 	3,745		 (4,078)
  
Operating profit after income tax   2,475  10,578 
     
    
The above income statement has been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008	
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 Notes  2008   2007 
    $’000    $’000 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES    
Retained	profits	 	 	340,652	 338,177	
Capital	contribution	 	 	43,901		 39,492	
     
   384,553  377,669 

Represented by:     

CURRENT ASSETS     
Cash	on	hand	and	at	bank	 	 	10,028		 36,721	
Short term deposit   -  5,000 
Receivables	and	prepayments	 8	 	30,295		 25,005
Inventories 9  14,176  14,891
Other assets 10  409  - 
Loans receivable 12  621  - 
     
   55,529 81,617 
     

NON-CURRENT ASSETS     
Property,	plant	and	equipment	 11	 	658,670	 563,729	
Loans	receivable	 12	 	10,357		 10,978	
Investments	 13	 	1,772		 1,053
Intangible assets  14 - -
Deferred tax assets 5(b)  11,417  11,716 

   682,216  587,476 
     
TOTAL  ASSETS   737,745  669,093 
     
CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Trade	and	other	payables	 15	 	14,372		 15,224	
Provision for employee entitlements 16  1,817  1,962 
Interest	bearing	borrowings	 17	 	40,815		 46,231		 	
     
   57,004  63,417 
   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Trade	and	other	payables	 15	 	24,504		 13,301	
Provision	for	employee	entitlements	 16	 	5,769		 6,239	
Interest	bearing	borrowings	 17	 	202,156		 139,807	
Deferred	income	 18	 	13,275		 14,132	
Deferred tax liabilities 5(c)  50,484  54,528 
     
    296,188  228,007 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   353,192  291,424 

NET ASSETS   384,553  377,669 
    

The above balance sheet has been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BALANCE SHEET
AS	AT	31	DECEMBER	2008	
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 Notes  2008  2007 
     $’000    $’000   
     
Cash flows from operating activities     
 
 Receipts from customers   190,820  171,440 
	 Payments	to	suppliers	and	employees	 	 	(151,704)	 (112,893)
 Interest received   941  1,007 
	 Interest	paid	 	 	(11,183)	 	(8,497)
	 Royalty	income	received	 	 	-		 	135	
       
 Net cash flows from operating activities 7  28,874  51,192 
      
 
Cash flows from investing activities     
 
	 Acquisition	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 	(122,313)	 	(67,900)
 Repayment of advance by joint venture   -  9,574 
 Payment for investment in short term deposit   -  (5,000)
 Proceeds from investment in short term deposit   5,000  - 
	 Proceeds	from	capital	contribution	for	general	extension	 	 	4,748	 	3,093	
	 Proceeds	from	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 		 199	 	35	
       
  Net cash flows used in investing activities   (112,366)  (60,198)
      

Cash flows from financing activities     

	 Repayment	of	bonds	and	loans	 	 	(48,031)	 	(33,891)
	 Proceeds	from	bonds	and	loans	 	 	103,591	 	78,750	
	 Repayments	of	other	borrowings	 	 	-	 	(135)
       
  Net cash flows from financing activities   55,560  44,724 
      

Net	increase/(decrease)	in	cash	held	 	 	(27,932)	 	35,718	

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	-	at	the	beginning	of	the	year	 	 	36,721	 	1,003 
       
Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the year 6  8,789  36,721 
      
 
The above cash flow has been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008
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STATEMENT	OF	CHANGES	IN	CAPITAL	AND	RESERVES
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

 Capital  Retained  Total 
 Contributions  Profits   
  
 $’000  $’000  $’000
    
Balance as at 31 December 2006  	 36,079	 327,599	 363,678
 
Movement	in	reserves	 3,413	 	-		 3,413
    
Net	profit	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2007		 	-			 10,578		 10,578
 
Balance as at 31 December 2007 39,492 338,177 377,669
    
Movement in reserves 4,409  -  4,409
    
Net	profit	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2008	 	-			 2,475		 2,475
 
Balance as at 31 December 2008 43,901  340,652  384,553
    
 
The above statement of change in capital and reserves has been prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES   
    
 Statement of Compliance   
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Electricity Act 1966 (Cap 180) and International 

Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as required by the Fiji Institute of Accountants.
    
 Basis of Preparation   
 The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain non-

current assets and financial instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for 
assets.

    
 In the application of IFRS, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about carrying 

values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

    
 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.  Judgments made by management in 
the application of IFRS that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of 
material adjustments in the next year are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

    
 Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies 

the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other 
events is reported.

    
 Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective
 The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are 

mandatory for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later periods, but the Authority has not 
early adopted them.  No significant impact is expected to arise out of these standards, amendments and interpretations.

	 •	 IAS	23	(Amendment),	‘Borrowing	costs’	(effective	from	1	January	2009).
	 •	 IFRS	8,	‘Operating	segments’	(effective	from	1	January	2009).		IFRS	8	replaces	IAS	14.
	 •	 IAS	1	(Revised),	‘Presentation	of	financial	statements’	(effective	from	1	January	2009).	 	 	
	 •	 IAS	32	(Amendment),	‘Financial	instruments:		Presentation’,	and	IAS	1	(Amendment),	‘Presentation	of	financial							

 statements’ - ‘Put table financial instruments and obligations arising on liquidation’ (effective from 1 January 2009). 
•	 IFRS	1	(Amendment),	‘First	time	adoption	of	IFRS’,	and	IAS	27	‘Consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements’		
 (effective from 1 January 2009).   

	 •	 IAS	27	(Revised),	‘Consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements’	(effective	from	1	July	2009).	 	 	
•	 IFRS	3	(Revised),	‘Business	combinations’	(effective	from	1	July	2009).	 	 	

	 •	 IAS	36	(Amendment),	‘Impairment	of	assets’	(effective	from	1	January	2009).	 	 	
	 •	 IAS	38	(Amendment),	‘Intangible	assets’	(effective	from	1	January	2009).	 	 	
	 •	 IAS	1	(Amendment),	‘Presentation	of	financial	statements’	(effective	from	1	January	2009).		 	
 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF  THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF  THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)   
    
 The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial 

report:
    
a) Allowance for doubtful debts  
 The Authority establishes an allowance for any doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end.  

Bad debts are written off during the period when they are identified.
    
(b)      Bond instruments   
 The bonds issued are recorded at cost which reflects the face value of these instruments.

 Transaction costs on the issue of bond instruments are capitalised and amortised to the income statement over the 
currency life of the bond instruments. Transaction costs are the costs that are incurred directly in connection with the 
issue of those bond instruments and which would not have been incurred had those instruments not been issued.

    
(c)      Borrowing costs   
 The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to major capital expenditures and projects under construction are 

capitalized as part of the cost of these assets.  Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which 
they are incurred.

 The government guarantee fees on loans drawdown specifically for capital projects are capitalised. Other guarantee fees 
paid are expensed.

    
(d) Capital contribution   
 Non refundable capital contribution represents 75% of the cost of the extension, received from the developer or a 

prospective consumer.  The cost of the extension is the estimated cost of the extension incurred from the Authority’s 
nearest mains supply point capable of providing the assessed load required. The developer or a prospective consumer 
applying for a general extension provides a non refundable capital contribution of 75% of the cost of the extension 
which is credited to capital  contribution.

(e)     Cash and cash equivalents  
 For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, short term deposits held 

with banks and bank overdrafts.  Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings under current liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet.

    
(f) Comparative figures   
 Where necessary, amounts relating to prior years have been reclassified to facilitate comparison and achieve consistency 

in disclosure with current year amounts.
    
(g)     Deferred  income   
 Grant in aid and assets acquired at no cost to the Authority are capitalised and systematically recognised as other 

income on the basis of the expected lives of the assets to which the grants relate.
 
(h)     Employee benefits   
    
 i) Sick leave   
 The provision is in relation to unutilised sick leave of non contract staff in accordance with their terms and conditions of 

employment and is calculated on current salary and wage rates.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)   

 ii) Annual leave   
 The provision for annual leave represents the amount which the Authority has a present obligation to pay for employee’s 

services provided up to the balance date.  The provision has been calculated on the current wage and salary rates.
    
 iii)  Long service leave   
 The liability is determined by the conditions of employment, employee’s services provided up to the balance date and 

is calculated and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Authority in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

    
 iv) Retirement benefit   
 The liability is determined by the conditions of employment, employee’s services provided up to the balance date and 

is calculated and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Authority in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

    
 Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at 

the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Authority in respect of services provided by 
the employees up to reporting date.

    
(i)      Foreign currency translation
 Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated to Fiji currency at the exchange rate at the date of the 

transaction.
    
 Foreign currency receivables and payables at balance date are translated to Fiji currency at exchange rates current at 

balance date.
    
 All gains and losses arising therefrom (realised and unrealised) are brought to account in determining the profit or loss 

for the year.
    
(j)      Inventories   
 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost is based on the average cost principle and 

includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stock and bringing it to its existing condition and location. Consumables 
are valued at cost plus the associated delivery charges.

  
k)   Impairment of assets   
 At each Balance Sheet date, the Authority reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to   

determine  whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication  
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if  
any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Authority estimates  
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.   

    
 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the   
  estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current  
  market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future  
  cash flows have not been adjusted.   
    
 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,  
  the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
  is recognised immediately in the income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the
 impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.   



40

Fiji ElEctricity Authority   AnnuAl rEport 2008

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
    
l) Investments   
 Interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for and reported using the equity method whereby an interest in   
 a jointly controlled entity is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the   
 share of net assets of the jointly controlled entity. The income statement reflects the share of the results of the    
 operations of the jointly controlled entity.   
    
m) Intangible assets
 Investment in movie productions has been valued at cost and reduced by an impairment charge to arrive at    
 a carrying amount the Authority expects to recover from the exploitation of the copyright in accordance with the   
 Production Investment Agreement. 
      
n) Leased assets   
 The Authority has motor vehicles that are under operating leases, where all risks and benefits of ownership are    
 effectively retained by the lessor.   
    
  Operating lease payments made under operating leases are charged to expense over the period of the expected   
 benefit.   
   
 Fiji Electricity Authority, the Monasavu Landowners and the Native Land Trust Board (NLTB) have in 2005 signed an   
	 agreement	to	lease	approximately	23,000	acres	of	the	Monasavu	catchment	area	for	a	period	of	99	years	in	return	for		 	
 specified payments. These lease committments are disclosed under note 20 to the financial statements.
   
0) Payables   
 Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Authority becomes obliged to make future   
 payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.   
    
(p)     Property, plant and equipment 
 Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Cost includes   
 expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. Cost of leasehold land includes initial premium   
 payment or price paid to acquire leasehold land including acquisition costs.
    
 Additions   
 While expenditure on assets with a value of less than $1,000 is generally not capitalised, physical control is maintained over  
 all items regardless of cost.
    
 Depreciation rates   
 Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of each asset over their estimated useful lives as  
 follows:
  Rates 
 Leasehold land 0.50% - 1.25% 
 Buildings - Concrete 1.25% 
 Buildings - Others 1.25% 
	 Hydro	Assets	-	Dams	 1.33%	-	2.50%	
	 Hydro	Assets	-	Tunnels	 1.33%	-	2.44%	
	 Hydro	Assets	-	Plant	and	Machinery	 2.50%	-	3.00%	
 Thermal assets 4.00% - 7.00%  
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 Transmission 2.50% 
 Communication system & control 2.86% 
 Reticulation 4.00% 
 Wind Mill 5.00% 
 Furniture & fittings 7.00% - 24.00% 
 Motor vehicles 20.00% 
	 Computers	 33.30%	

 Other fixed assets except for capital spares, are depreciated when they are brought into service. 

 Freehold land are not depreciated. Leasehold land are amortised over the remaining lease period.
    
 Capital spares   
 Capital spares represent items held primarily for use in thermal stations in the event of a breakdown.  In recognition of 

the increased risk of obsolescence over a protracted period, capital spares are amortised in line with the depreciation 
rates applicable to the related plant and machinery. Capital spares are reported as part of Authority’s fixed assets.

    
 Disposals
 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are included in the 

operating profit.
  
 Repairs and maintenance
 Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic 
benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Authority. Major 
renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

(q) Provisions    
 Provisions are recognised:

	 -		When	the	Authority	has	a	present	legal	or	constructive	obligation	as	a	result	of	past	events;	
	 -		It	is	probable	that	an	outflow	of	resources	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation;	and
 -  The amount can be reliably estimated. 
    
 Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
    
 Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is  

determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 

    
 Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the   

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the   
risks specific to the obligation.  

    
(r) Reporting currency   
 All figures are reported in Fiji currency.  

(s) Revenue recognition

 Electricity income   
 Electricity income is recorded in the income statement on an accrual basis by estimating the usage for   

customers to balance date.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

 Other income   
 Rental income earned from leasing FEA properties is recorded in the income statement on an accrual basis.
    
 Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield on the  

financial asset.
    
 Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.
    
 Fuel surcharge represents a temporary charge applied by the Authority on electricity as determined by the   

Commerce Commission to recover the incremental costs of diesel fuel and is recognised on an accrual basis.
    
(t) Rounding off amounts   
 Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars unless specifically  

stated to be otherwise.
   
(u)      Taxation   

  Current tax:
 Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable 

profit or tax loss for the year. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by reporting date. Current tax for current and prior years is recognised as a liability or asset to the extent that 
it is unpaid or  refundable.

    
 Deferred tax:
  Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive Balance Sheet liability method in respect of temporary 

differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax base of those items.

    
  In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible 
temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised. However, deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities (other than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither taxable income nor accounting 
profit. 

    
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when the 

asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Authority expects, at the reporting date, to recover or 
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

    
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority 

and the Authority intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
    
 Current and deferred tax for the period:
 Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when it relates to 

items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, or 
where it arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, in which case it is taken into account in the 
determination of goodwill or excess.
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(v)     Segment information   
 The Authority is not required to report segment information as it is not applicable to the nature of the Authority’s 

business. Whilst electricity revenue is distinguished by key business segments, this is done purely for information 
purposes. The Authority has only one product in electricity, and costs associated with this product are totally 
common to all business segments, and it is not possible nor practical to attempt to allocate costs across the business 
segments. The Authority’s power generating system and distribution are operated on a fully integrated basis.

    
(w) Value Added Tax (VAT)   
	 Revenues,	expenses,	assets	and	liabilities	are	recognised	net	of	the	amount	of	value	added	tax	(VAT),	except:
    
	 i)	Where	the	amount	of	VAT	incurred	is	not	recoverable	from	the	taxation	authority,	it	is	recognised	as	part	of	the	cost	

of	acquisition	of	an	asset	or	as	part	of	an	item	of	expense;	or
    
	 ii)	for	trade	receivables	and	trade	payables	which	are	recognised	inclusive	of	VAT.
    
	 The	net	amount	of	VAT	recoverable	from,	or	payable	to,	the	taxation	authority	is	included	as	part	of	receivables	or	

payables.
   
2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
    
2.1 Financial risk factors   
 The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate 

risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Authority’s financial 
performance. The Authority does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial 
instruments, for speculative purposes.  The Authority’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. 

    
(a)  Market risk    
    
(i)  Foreign exchange risk    
 The Authority undertakes various transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange   

rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are closely managed within approved policy parameters. 
    
 As at year end, assets denominated in foreign currencies are not significant hence changes in the US, Australian 

and NZ dollars by 10% (increase or decrease) is expected to have no significant impact on the net profit and equity 
balances currently reflected in the Authority’s financial statements. 

    
	 However,	a	risk	arises	on	the	Authority’s	obligation	with	respect	to	the	foreign	currency	loan	of	US$30	million	

obtained during the year from ANZ Bank for certain major capital projects. As at year end, the loan amount 
amounting	to	US$30	million	remains	unpaid.	

    
 Furthermore, during the year the Authority has awarded the Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project to a 

contractor based in China namely Sinohydro Corporation Limited for contract amount of US$124.8 million (refer note 
22). Accordingly, changes in the US dollars by 10% (increase or decrease) is expected to have a significant impact on 
the cost of the project.

    
 Also, subsequent to balance date, the Authority signed a loan agreement with China Development Bank for US$70 

million	for	funding	the	Nadarivatu	Renewable	Hydro	Power	Project	(refer	note	23).		Accordingly,	changes	in	the	US	
dollars by 10% (increase or decrease) is expected to have a significant impact on the repayment of the loan.  
  

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

	 Further,	as	referred	to	in	note	23,	the	devaluation	of	the	Fiji	dollar	on	15	April	2009	is	expected	to	have	significant	
impact on the net profit and equity balances in the Authority’s financial statements in future, primarily in relation to 
the borrowings from ANZ Bank, China Development Bank and the cost of fuel purchases.   

 The Authority enters into forward foreign exchange contracts on a selective basis to manage its exposure to foreign 
exchange rate risk. 

    
 Forward exchange contracts are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and 

are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. These forward exchange contracts do not 
qualify for hedge accounting.    

(ii)  Price risk    
 The Authority does not have investments in equity securities and hence is not exposed to equity securities price risk.  

The Authority is not exposed to commodity price risk. 
    
(iii) Regulatory risk
  The Authority’s profitability can be significantly impacted by regulatory agencies established which govern   

 and control the electricty sector in Fiji. Specifically, fuel surcharges and electricity tariffs are regulated by Commerce  
Commission.

    
(iv) Interest rate risk 
 The Authority has significant interest-bearing assets in the form of short-term cash deposits.  These are at fixed 

interest rates and hence there are no interest rate risks during the period of investment.  For re-investment of short 
and long term cash deposits, the Authority negotiates an appropriate interest rate with the banks and invests with 
the bank which offers the highest interest return.    

 Given the fixed nature of interest rates described above, the Authority has a high level of certainty over the impact 
on cash flows arising from interest income.  Accordingly, the Authority does not require simulations to be performed 
over the impact on net profits arising from changes in interest rates.   

 All debts of the Authority raised through bond issues bear fixed interest rates.  Therefore, the Authority is not exposed 
to interest rate risk.    

 In relation to borrowings from Fiji National Provident Fund and Suva City Council, the Authority is not exposed to 
interest rate risk as it borrows funds at fixed interest rates.   
   

 In relation to the borrowings from banks, the Authority to certain extent is not exposed to interest rate risk as certain 
borrowed funds are at fixed interest rates, for the agreed term. Thereafter, the interest rates are re-negotiated and 
new interest rates are agreed upon. The risk is managed closely within the approved policy parameters.

    
 The Authority did not enter into any interest swap contracts.   

(b) Credit risk    
 Credit risk arises from deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding 

receivables. For deposits with banks, only reputable parties with known sound financial standing are accepted. Trade 
accounts receivable consist of a large number of customers, residential, industrial and commercial. The Authority 
does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having 
similar characteristics. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any 
allowances for losses, represents the Authority’s minimum exposure to credit risk. 

    

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Liquidity risk   
 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash to ensure availability of funding.  The Authority 

monitors liquidity through rolling forecasts of the Authority’s cash flow position.  Overall, the Authority does not see 
liquidity risk as high given that a reasonable portion of revenues are billed and collected.

    
 The table below analyses the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the 

remaining period at the balance date to the contractual maturity date.  The amounts disclosed in the table are based 
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows.  

 Fair value estimation   
    
 The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair 

values. The carrying values of financial liabilities and financial assets and provisions are estimated to approximate their 
fair values.

    
  
Financial assets:  Less than 2 to More than Total
  one year 5 years 5 years
  $’000 $’000 $’000
    
Cash on hand and at bank   10,028   -     -    10,028
Receivables	and	prepayments	 	 	30,295		 	-				 	-				 30,295
Other assets  409 - - 409
Loans	receivable	 	 	621		 	10,357		 	-	 10,978

Total   41,353   10,357   -    51,710 

Financial liabilities:   
    
Bank	overdraft	 		 1,239		 	-				 	-				 1,239
Trade	and	other	payables	 	 	14,372		 	24,504		 	-				 38,876
Bonds	payable	 	 	400		 	66,250		 	72,500		 139,150
Interest	bearing	borrowings	 		 39,176		 	58,216		 	5,190		 102,582
    
Total   55,187   148,970   77,690  281,847
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

2.2  Critical accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions 
  Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,  

 including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
    
2.2.1 Critical accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions   
 The Authority makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, 

by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below.     

    
(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment    
 The Authority assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all property, plant and equipment at each 

reporting date. Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment and when there are indicators that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable, reasonable provision for impairment are created. As at balance date, no 
provision for impairment has been made as the Authority reasonably believes that no indicators for impairment exist. 
    

(b)  Impairment of accounts receivable    
 Impairment of accounts receivable balances is assessed at an individual level and impairment tests are performed 

on a more specific basis. All receivable balances relating to the closed customer accounts are estimated to have been 
impaired and are accordingly provided for.    

    
(c)  Deferred tax assets    
 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that taxable profits will be available against 

which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely level of future taxable profits together with future planning 
strategies.    

    
(d) Provision for stock obsolescence    
 Provision for stock obsolescence is assessed and raised on a specific basis based on a review of inventories.  

Inventories considered obsolete or un-serviceable are written off in the year in which they are identified.   
  

(e) Estimated impairment of investment in movie productions    
 The investment in movie productions comprises of a guaranteed and a non-guaranteed portion. The impairment 

allowance in note 14 represents the provision based on the management’s assessment of the expected recoveries of 
the exploitation of the copyright in the movie productions.    
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3. OPERATING REVENUE 2008 2007
   $’000  $’000
  ELECTRICITY SALES   
           Commercial 75,457  68,477
	 										Industrial	 35,871		 34,145
	 										Domestic	 47,361		 44,278
           Others 750  868
      
        Total electricity sales  159,439  147,768
    
        OTHER OPERATING REVENUE   
    
	 										Contract	sales	 583		 666
           Deferred income 856  856
	 										Fuel	rebates	and	concession	 138		 346
           Fuel surcharge 20,599  15,062
           Insurance proceeds  -   247
	 										Power	pole	rentals	 636		 523
           Provision for spares obsolescence written back  -   850
	 										Rentals	 18		 33
	 										Royalty	income	 	-			 135
           Sales and commissions 186  187
	 										Service	and	licence	fees	 1,313		 1,069
           Street light maintenance charges 1  1
           Training rebates 46  21
	 										Unrealised	exchange	gain	 402		 143
	 										VAT	liability	written	back	 	-			 119
     
         Total other operating revenue 24,778 20,258
    
         Total revenue 184,217 168,026
    
    
4. OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS)   
    
 Operating profit / (loss) before income tax and interest in joint venture   
 has been determined after charging the following expenses:   
    
	 Auditor’s		remuneration	for	auditing	services	 33		 32
 Professional fees for other services 15  26
 Capital spares write-off  -   1,620
	 Director’s	fees	 40		 39
	 Depreciation	and	amortisation	 29,013		 27,400
	 Government	guarantee	fees	 195		 384
	 Insurance	 3,490		 3,345
 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 126  51
	 Personnel	costs	 17,310		 17,444
 Project cost write-off  -   1,529
	 Provision	for	diminution	of	investments	 	-			 135
	 Stock	write-off	 	-			 203
    

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2008 2007
   $’000  $’000  
 (a) The prima facie income tax on the pre-tax profit/(loss) reconciles 
 to the income tax expense/(benefit) as follows:    
    
 Operating profit/(loss) before income tax (1,270)  14,656
    
	 Prima	facie	income	tax	payable/(benefit)	at	31%	 (394)		 4,543
    
 Tax effect of:   
  -  Audio visual production investment write-down  -   42
	 	-		Employee	taxation	scheme	 (53)		 (73)
  -  Share of profit of joint venture (222)  (109)
  -  Royalty income - F1 audio visual production  -     (42)
  -  Deferred income (265)  (265)
    
 Over provision in prior year (116)  (18)
    
 Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in income 
	 tax	rate	from	31%	to	29%	(effective	from	1	January	2009)	 (2,695)		 	-	
    
 Income tax expense/(benefit) attributable to operating profit (3,745)  4,078 
    
 Deferred tax assets/liabilities movement   
    
 (b) The deferred tax assets consist of the following at future tax rate:  
    
 Tax losses  9,659  9,658
	 Provision	for	employee	benefits	 1,673		 1,934
 Allowance for doubtful debts 85  124
      
    11,417 11,716  

 (c) The deferred tax liabilities consist of the following taxable 
 temporary differences at future tax rate:  
    
	 Difference	in	depreciation	for	accounting	and	income	tax	purpose	 50,367		 54,499
 Unrealised exchange (loss)/gain 117  29
    
  50,484  54,528
    
 Income tax expense/(benefit) comprises movements in:   
    
	 Deferred	tax	asset	 299		 (3,479)
 Deferred tax liability (4,044)  7,557

  (3,745)  4,078 
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    
    
 Short term deposits  10,011  10,000
 Cash at bank and on hand 17  26,721
	 Bank	overdraft	 (1,239)		 	-	
    
 Total cash and cash equivalents 8,789  36,721
    
 The interest rate on short term deposits held during 2008 ranged from 0.5% to 1.25% per annum. 
    

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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7. RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 2008 2007
 ACTIVITIES  TO OPERATING PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX $’000  $’000
  
 Operating profit after income tax expense 2,475 10,578
    
 Adjustments for:   
 Allowance for doubtful debts written back (107)   - 
  Project costs write off  -   1,529
 Capital spares write off  -   1,620
	 Depreciation	and	amortisation	 29,013		 27,400
 Income from capital grant (856)  (856)
 Loss on disposal of motor vehicles 126  51
	 Provision	for	investment	diminution	 	-			 135
 Provision for spares obsolescence written back  -   (850)
	 Share	of	profit	of	joint	venture	 (717)		 (352)
	 Unrealised	exchange	gain	 (402)		 (143)

 Changes in assets and liabilities:   
	 (Increase)	/	decrease	in	trade		and	other	receivables		 (5,304)		 2,815
	 (Increase)	/	decrease	in	inventories	 789		 (1,263)
	 (Increase)	/	decrease	in	deferred	tax	asset	 299	 (3,480)
 Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 8,218  5,278
	 Increase	/	(decrease)	in	provision	for	employee	entitlements	 (616)		 1,173
 Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax liability (4,044)  7,557
      
 Net cash provided by operating activities 28,874 51,192
    
8. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
   
 Electricity debtors 21,214  19,186
	 Other	debtors	 4,103		 1,179
 Advance to joint venture  2,174  2,174
	 VAT	receivable	 1,254		 1,169
	 Prepayments	and	deposits	 1,843		 1,697
      
  30,588  25,405
 Allowance for doubtful debts   
	 	-	Electricity	debtors	 (278)		 (390)
  - Other debtors (15)  (10)
 
 Total receivables and prepayments (net) 30,295  25,005
    
 The terms of trade for electricity debtors are 14 days from the date of billing.
   
9. INVENTORIES   
   
	 Consumables	-	at	cost	 13,032		 14,595
 Goods in transit 1,144  296
      
 Total inventories 14,176  14,891

10. OTHER ASSETS
   
 Foreign currency contracts 409  - 
    

On	17th	December	2008,	the	Authority	purchased	US$13,785,965	from	the	Reserve	Bank	of	Fiji	by	paying	equivalent	
Fiji dollars on the condition that the Authority will sell the same amount of US dollars when the foreign currency loan 
from	the	China	Development	Bank	is	received	in	2009.		Accordingly,	in	accordance	with	IAS	39,	a	foreign	currency	
contract is created and the value of the foreign currency contract is the difference between the exchange rate at 
which the purchase of US dollars was carried out and the exchange rate at year end.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2008 2007
   $’000  $’000
 Freehold land   
	 At	cost		 2,817		 1,325
    
  Leasehold land   
	 At	cost		 13,370		 13,277
  Accumulated depreciation (900)  (764)
    
   12,470  12,513
  Buildings and improvements    
	 At	cost		 70,651		 68,390
		 Accumulated	depreciation	 (11,245)		 (10,632)
    
   59,406  57,758
  Dam, tunnels and water conductor   
 At cost  171,107  171,107
	 Accumulated	depreciation	 (16,663)		 (12,493)
    
   154,444  158,614
 Plant, equipment and transmission assets   
	 At	cost		 319,225		 298,549
	 Accumulated	depreciation	 (73,287)		 (54,128)
    
  245,938  244,421
 Furniture and fittings    
	 At	cost		 16,255		 15,663
	 Accumulated	depreciation	 (12,237)		 (10,965)
    
  4,018  4,698
 Wind mill   
	 At	cost		 35,349		 35,350
 Accumulated depreciation (2,457)  (721)
    
  32,892  34,629
 Motor vehicles   
	 At	cost		 11,142		 9,913
 Accumulated depreciation (5,714)  (4,196)
    
  5,428  5,717
 Capital spares   
 At cost 2,471  2,347
    
 Capital works in progress   
	 -	Nadarivatu	Renewable	Hydro	Power	Project	 107,526		 23,348
 - Optic Fibre Ground Wire (OPGW) Project  -     3,282
	 -	Network	Augmentation	Project	 12,369		 	-	
 - Natadola Substation Project 4,906   - 
	 -	Rural	and	Urban	Reticulation	Project	 3,206		 2,273
	 -	Turnkey	Project		 2,231		 2,158
 - Others 8,548  10,646
    
  138,786  41,707
    
 Total 
 -	At	cost		 781,173	 657,628
 - Accumulated depreciation (122,503)	 (93,899)
    
 Closing net book value 658,670 563,729
 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008



51

Fiji ElEctricity Authority    AnnuAl rEport 2008

1
1

.  P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y,

 P
LA

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 (C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ec

o
n

ci
lia

ti
o

n
 o

f t
h

e 
ca

rr
yi

n
g

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
f e

ac
h

 c
la

ss
 o

f p
ro

p
er

ty
, p

la
n

t 
an

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

at
 t

h
e 

b
eg

in
n

in
g

 
an

d
 e

n
d

 o
f t

h
e 

 c
u

rr
en

t 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r 
is

 s
et

 o
u

t 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
D

am
,   

Pl
an

t, 
 

   
  

    
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Tu

nn
el

s  
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t &
  

 
 

 
 

Ca
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
Fr

ee
ho

ld
 

Le
as

eh
ol

d 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 &

  
an

d 
W

at
er

  
Tr

an
sm

is
si

on
   

Fu
rn

itu
re

  
W

in
d 

M
ot

or
 

Ca
pi

ta
l  

 W
or

ks
 In

 
 

 
 

La
nd

 
La

nd
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
Co

nd
uc

to
r 

A
ss

et
s 

&
 F

itt
in

gs
 

M
ill

 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 

Sp
ar

es
  

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
To

ta
l 

 
 

$’
00

0 
$’

00
0 

$’
00

0 
$’

00
0 

$’
00

0 
$’

00
0 

$’
00

0 
$’

00
0 

$’
00

0 
$’

00
0 

$’
00

0
 Ba

la
nc

e 
as

 a
t  

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6	

1,
32

5	
12

,7
20

	
57

,3
48

	
16

2,
77

4	
23

1,
60

7	
2,

83
4	

-	
5,

12
4	

3,
32

1	
48

,1
16

	
52

5,
16

9
A

dd
iti

on
s	

-	
-	

	-	
			

	-	
			

	-	
			

	-	
			

-	
	-	

			
1,

28
6	

66
,3

34
	

67
,6

20
D

is
po

sa
l	

-	
-	

	-	
	-	

			
	-	

			
	-	

			
-	

	(1
31

)		
		

	-	
			

(1
,5

29
)		

		
(1

,6
60

)	
Tr

an
sf

er
s	

-	
96

	
99

5	
	-	

			
31

,6
80

	
3,

02
3	

35
,3

50
	

2,
22

5	
	(2

,1
55

)	
(7

1,
21

4)
	

-	
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n	

ch
ar

ge
	

-	
(3

03
)	

(5
85

)	
(4

,1
60

)	
(1

8,
86

6)
	

(1
,1

59
)	

(7
21

)	
(1

,5
01

)	
(1

05
)	

	-	
			

(2
7,

40
0)

  

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t  
 

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
7 

1,
32

5 
12

,5
13

 
57

,7
58

 
15

8,
61

4 
24

4,
42

1 
4,

69
8 

34
,6

29
 

5,
71

7 
2,

34
7 

41
,7

07
 

56
3,

72
9

A
dd

iti
on

s	
-	

-	
	-	

			
	-	

			
	-	

			
	-	

			
-	

	-	
			

48
4	

12
3,

75
1	

12
4,

23
5	

D
is

po
sa

l 
- 

- 
 - 

 - 
   

 - 
   

 - 
   

- 
 (2

81
)  

  
 - 

   
-  

 
(2

81
) 

Tr
an

sf
er

s	
1,

49
2	

92
	

2,
26

1	
	

	-	
			

20
,6

76
	

59
2	

-	
1,

86
3	

	(3
04

)	
(2

6,
67

2)
	

-	
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n	

ch
ar

ge
	

-	
(1

35
)	

(6
13

)	
(4

,1
70

)	
(1

9,
15

9)
	

(1
,2

72
)	

(1
,7

37
)	

(1
,8

71
)	

(5
6)

	
	-	

			
(2

9,
01

3)
  

 Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 
2,

81
7 

12
,4

70
 

59
,4

06
 

15
4,

44
4 

24
5,

93
8 

4,
01

8 
32

,8
92

 
5,

42
8 

2,
47

1 
13

8,
78

6 
65

8,
67

0
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

, b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 c

o
st

s 
o

f $
1

,8
1

9
,6

7
5

 a
n

d
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

g
u

ar
an

te
e 

fe
es

 o
f $

4
0

1
,9

2
9

 w
er

e 
ca

p
it

al
is

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

co
st

 o
f t

h
e 

N
ad

ar
iv

at
u

 R
en

ew
ab

le
 H

yd
ro

 
Po

w
er

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
n

d
 N

et
w

o
rk

 A
u

g
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

ct
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
La

n
d

 t
it

le
 in

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f t
h

e 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
cq

u
is

ti
o

n
 o

f l
an

d
 a

t 
K

in
o

ya
 h

av
e 

n
o

t 
ye

t 
b

ee
n

 le
g

al
ly

 t
ra

n
sf

er
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
o

n
as

av
u

 le
as

e 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 a

n
d

 le
as

e 
ti

tl
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

fo
rm

al
ly

 e
xe

cu
te

d
 a

n
d

 is
su

ed
 o

n
ce

 t
h

e 
th

e 
la

n
d

 s
u

rv
ey

 is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

n
	1

7
	D

ec
em

b
er

	2
0

0
8

,	t
h

e	
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
	m

ad
e	

an
	a

d
va

n
ce

	p
ay

m
en

t	
o

f	U
S$

4
3

.8
m

	t
o

	S
in

o
h

yd
ro

	C
o

rp
o

ra
ti

o
n

	L
im

it
ed

	fo
r	

th
e	

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
	o

f	t
h

e	
N

ad
ar

iv
at

u
	

R
en

ew
ab

le
 H

yd
ro

 P
o

w
er

 P
ro

je
ct

. T
h

e 
p

ay
m

en
t 

m
ad

e 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 r
ec

o
rd

ed
 a

s 
ca

p
it

al
 w

o
rk

 in
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 fo
r 

2
0

0
8

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008



52

Fiji ElEctricity Authority   AnnuAl rEport 2008

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

12. LOANS RECEIVABLE 2008 2007  
  $’000  $’000 
     
 Sustainable Energy Limited - secured loan 10,978 10,978 
 
 Classified as:   
 Current portion  621   - 
	 Non-current	portion	 10,357	 10,978
   
 Total 10,978 10,978
   
 The loans to the joint venture company are to be repaid over a 10 year period at an interest rate of 7.5% per    
 annum. The loans are secured by debentures over the assets and undertaking of the joint venture company.   
  
13. INVESTMENTS    
     
 Equity accounted investments in joint venture 1,772  1,053 
     
 The Authority holds a 50% share in the joint venture company, Sustainable Energy Limited (SEL), a company    
 incorporated in Fiji. At balance date, the issued and paid-up capital of SEL was $100. 
     
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS   
    
 Movie production
   
 Gross carrying amount:
 Balance as at 1 January 1,614 1,614
 Additions  -   - 
    
 Balance as at 31 December 1,614 1,614
    
 Accumulated impairment allowance:   
 Balance as at 1 January 1,614 1,479
	 Impairment	allowance	 	-		 135
    
 Balance as at 31 December  1,614 1,614
    
 Net book amount  -   - 
    
 
  Investment in movie production comprises of investment in “Pirate Islands 2” movie project.  The movie   

project	has	been	granted	F1	Provisional	Certificate	by	the	Fiji	Audio	Visual	Commission	and	accordingly,	 	
incentive by way of 150% tax deduction is available.  The investment has been valued at cost and reduced by an 
impairment charge to arrive at a carrying amount which is an amount the Authority expects to recover from the 
exploitation of the copyright in accordance with the Production Investment Agreement.   
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2008 2007
   $’000 $’000
 Current    
 Trade creditors 959  589 
	 Other	creditors	and	accruals	 4,659		 7,324	
	 Accrued	interest	 1,235		 1,228	
	 Customer	deposits	 7,519		 6,083	
       
 Total current trade and other payables 14,372 15,224 
       
 Non-Current    
	 Other	creditors	and	accruals	 300		 600	
 Customer deposits 24,204 12,701 
 
 Total non-current trade and other payables 24,504 13,301 
       
The fair value of current liabilities equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.   
       
16. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS
    
 Bonus 545 616 
	 Sick	leave	 39	 	34			 	
	 Annual	leave	 1,233	 1,312	
	 Long	service	leave	 1,339	 1,274	
	 Retirement	benefits	 4,430	 4,965	
       
 Total provision for employee entitlements 7,586 8,201
 
 Current 1,817 1,962 
	 Non-current	 5,769	 6,239	
       
 Total provision for employee entitlements 7,586 8,201
 
 Employee numbers  
	 Number	of	full-time	equivalent	employees	as	at	31st	December  649  569 
       
 17. INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS 
    
 Current    
	 Bank	overdraft	(b)	 1,239	 -		
 Bonds (a) 400 22,200 
	 Term	loans	-	ANZ	Bank	(b)	 35,000	 20,000	
	 Term	loan			-	FNPF	(c)	 4,139	 3,995	
	 Term	loan			-	Suva	City	Council	(d)	 37	 36	
       
 Total current interest bearing borrowings 40,815 46,231 
       
 Non-Current    
	 Bonds	(a)	 138,750	 90,950	
	 Term	loans	-	ANZ	Bank	(b)	 53,725	 35,000	
 Term loan   - FNPF (c) 4,288 8,427  
	 Term	loan			-	Suva	City	Council	(d)	 5,393	 5,430	
       
 Total non-current interest bearing borrowings 202,156 139,807 
       
 Total interest bearing borrowings 242,971 186,038 
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

(a) Bonds   
 In July 2008, the Authority issued $50m of bonds in Fiji’s domestic market and received very competitive interest rates. 

The Reserve Bank of Fiji offers, manages and carries out registry services on behalf of the Authority. The Authority’s 
bonds are issued in competitive tenders. The bonds are recorded at cost which reflects the face value of the bonds. 
Bonds worth $24m were repaid in 2008.   

   
	 The	maturing	terms	of	the	bonds	range	from	3	to	15	years,	whilst	the	interest	rates	vary	from	3.43%	to	7.19%	per	annum.	

The bonds are guaranteed by the Government of Fiji.   
   
(b) Bank overdraft and term loans - ANZ Bank   
 The bank overdraft facility of $10m is subject to interest at a rate of 7%.  

 The term loans from ANZ Bank range from 1 to 2 years at interest rates between 4.45% to 10.75% per annum and 
include	a	foreign	currency	loan	of	US$30m.

 
 The bank overdraft facility and term loans are secured by the following:

	 (i)					Master	Operating	Lease	Agreement	covering	motor	vehicles;	and
 (ii)    Limited guarantee given by the Government of Fiji.                                                                                                                            

 
(c) Term loan  - FNPF   
	 The	term	loan	from	Fiji	National	Provident	Fund	(FNPF)	is	subject	to	interest	at	the	rate	of	3.57%	per	annum	and	is	

repayable over a period of 5 years in half yearly instalments of $2,201,558 until November 2010.

 The term loan from FNPF is secured by a loan agreement and limited guarantee given by the Government of Fiji. 
  

(d) Term loan  - Suva City Council   
	 The	term	loan	from	Suva	City	Council	(SCC)	is	subject	to	interest	at	the	rate	of	3%	per	annum	and	is	unsecured.	The	loan	

is repayable over a period of 87 years in equal instalments of $200,000 on 25th July each year until July 2065.    

18. DEFERRED  INCOME    

 EEC Grant In Aid 
      
	 EEC	Grant	in	Aid	 12,330	 	 12,330	
										Less:	accumulated	amortisation	 (4,846)	 	 (4,363)	

 Closing balance - 31 December 7,484  7,967 

 Government Grant For Rural Electrification 
      
	 Government	Grant	for	Rural	Electrification	 9,342	 	 9,342	
	 Less:	accumulated	amortisation	 (3,551)	 	 (3,177)	

 Closing balance - 31 December 5,791  6,165 

 Total deferred income (net) 13,275  14,132 

     
 The treatment of deferred income is in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(g) to the financial statements. 
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

19. CONTINGENT  LIABILITIES    
 
(a) Miscellaneous claims    
  No provision has been recorded in the accounts for unsecured contingent liabilities mainly in respect of    
 sundry court actions against the Authority. The Authority estimates such liability, if any, to be immaterial.  
     
  2008      2007 
   $’000   $’000 
(b ) Contingent liabilities exist with respect to the following:    
      
 Letter of credit  884  574 
	 Immigration	bond	 31		 37	
 Litigation claims - others 464  478 
    
  1,379  1,089 
     
20. COMMITMENTS    

 Estimated amounts of lease expenditure committed at balance date but not provided for in the financial    
 statements:    
   
a)  Motor vehicle operating leases    
	 Payable	no	later	than	one	year;	 125		 471	
 Payable later than one year but not later than two years.   - 46  
  
  125  517 
     
b)  Native and Crown leasehold land and other premises    
	 Payable	no	later	than	one	year;	 1,647		 1,465	
	 Payable	later	than	one	year	but	not	later	than	two	years;	 1,592		 1,414	
	 Payable	later	than	two	years	but	not	later	than	five	years;	 4,775		 4,241	
	 Payable	later	than	five	year.		 97,532		 83,025	
        
  105,546  90,145 
       
 Total commitments 105,671   90,662 
     

 The Native and Crown leasehold land includes the recent lease obtained for Monasavu land.  The            
 settlement signed with Monasavu Landowners and  the Native Land Trust Board commits the Authority to    
 the following future payments:        
 
	 Payable	no	later	than	one	year;	 620		 620	
	 Payable	later	than	one	year	but	not	later	than	two	years;	 620		 620	
	 Payable	later	than	two	years	but	not	later	than	five	years;	 1,860		 1,860	
 Payable later than five years. 54,120  54,740 
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

21.      CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS 2008   2007 
        $’000    $’000 
Capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not  

 otherwise provided for in the financial statements.        161,110			 4,307	

 Projects approved by the Board but not contracted for at balance date 85,000 140,501 

 The capital commitments include Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project, Financial Management Information 
System	(FMIS)	implementaion	and	the	Network	Augmentation	Projects	at	Natadola,	Kinoya,	Qeleloa,	Nausori	and	
Komo Park. Loan agreements have been signed with Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ) for 
funding these projects.  A loan agreement in-principle has been signed with China Development Bank, for funding the 
Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project.

 
22.   SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR   

 On 8th September 2008, the Authority signed a construction contract with Sinohydro Corporation Limited of the 
Republic of China for the construction of the Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project. The agreed contract amount 
is US$124.8m. The Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project is planned to be commissioned  in the year 2011 and is 
expected to generate 101 million units of electricity. 

 In relation to the above contract, the Authority has made an advance payment to Sinohydro Corporation Limited of 
US$43.8m	in	December	2008.	The	advance	of	US$43.8	million	is	funded	by	borrowing	of	US$30	million	from	ANZ	Bank	
and	the	balance	of	US$13.8	million	was	purchased,	for	short	term,	from	Reserve	Bank	of	Fiji	by	providing	Reserve	Bank	
of Fiji with equivalent Fiji dollars and commitment to repay in US dollars.   
.  

23 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE DATE   
  

a)  On 19th January 2009, the Authority signed a loan agreement with China Development Bank for US$70 million for 
funding its capital expansion projects specifically with respect to the Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project. 
On 27th January 2009, the Authority made the first draw-down from the China Development Bank loan amounting 
to	US$43.8	million.	Immediately	upon	receipt	of	the	loan	proceeds	from	China	Development	Bank,	on	28th	January	
2009	the	Authority	sold	US$13.8	million	to	Reserve	Bank	of	Fiji,	thereby	settling	the	Authority’s	committment	towards	
Reserve	Bank	of	Fiji	(refer	note	22).		The	balance	loan	proceeds	of	US$30	million	was	placed	in	short	term	foreign	
currency term deposits with ANZ Bank.   
  

b)  Subsequent to balance date, during January 2009, there was severe flooding in the Western Division of the island 
of	Viti	Levu,	Fiji	Islands.	The	flood	caused	damages	to	the	Authority’s	transmission	and	generation	assets.	The	loss	on	
account of this flooding is estimated to be around $1.6 million. The losses resulting from the flooding (net of insurance 
recoveries) have not been brought to the financial statements. These losses will be recognised in the financial 
statements	for	the	year	ending	31	December	2009.	 	 	
  

c)  Subsequent to balance date, on 15 April 2009, the Fiji dollar was devalued by 20%.  This will have a significant impact 
on	the	Authority	as	it	holds	significant	foreign	currency	loan	liabilities	as	at	31	December	2008.	

	 Loan	from	China	Development	Bank	amounting	to	US$43.8	million	has	been	received	in	January	2009.	Upon	
repayment of these loans, the Authority is expected to incur significant losses on account of the devaluation of the Fiji 
dollar. 

 Furthermore, the contracted amount for completing the Nadarivatu Renewable Hydro Power Project amounts to 
US$124.8 million. Upon execution of this contract over the next two years, the project cost is expected to significantly 
increase on account of the devaluation of the Fiji dollar.

 The financial effect of the above event, which has occurred after balance date, will be incorporated in the next financial 
statement	for	the	year	ending	31	December	2009.

 Apart from the above, no other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which 
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Authority, the results of those operations, or the 
state of affairs of the Authority in future financial years.   
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

24. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES   
 

	 The	principal	activities	of	the	Authority	are	the	generation,	transmission,	distribution	and	sale	of	electricity	on	Viti	Levu,	
Vanua	Levu	and	Ovalau	as	governed	by	the	Electricity	Act	and	Regulations.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS   

a)  The Authority is a statutory body constituted by an Act of Parliament and the transactions with the 
 Government  of Fiji during the year are as follows:   

  2008 2007
    $’000  $’000
   
	 Government	guarantee	fee	expenses	incurred	during	the	year	 195	 384
 Government guarantee fee expenses incurred during the year and capitalised 402  -   
   
 The Government of Fiji also provides guarantees on the bonds issued by the Authority.   

	 In	July	2008,	the	Cabinet	approved	to	increase	the	Government	guarantee	on	the	Authority’s	borrowings	from	$230	
million	to	$330	million	primarily	to	fund	the	Nadarivatu	Renewable	Hydro	Power	Project.			As	at	balance	date,	the	
Authority	had	borrowed	funds	amounting	to	$235.8	million	under	this	guarantee.	 	 	
   

b) Directors   

 The names of persons who were directors of the Authority during the year 2008 are as follows:   
 

 Nizam-ud-Dean (Chairman)   
Gardiner Henry Whiteside (Deputy Chairman)   
Napolioni Delasau   
Ravendra Prasad Maharaj

 John Low
	 Isikeli	Voceduadua	 	 	

Cama Tuiloma   
Hasmukh Patel (Ex-officio Member)

	 The	directors	fees	paid	during	the	year	were	$39,850.	 	 	



58

Fiji ElEctricity Authority   AnnuAl rEport 2008

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31	DECEMBER	2008

25 . RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Specified Executives   
 The specified executives of the Authority during the year were:   
   
 Rokoseru Nabalarua - Chief Executive Officer (Resigned in February 2008)   
 Hasmukh Patel - Chief Executive Officer (Appointed 1 August 2008)   
	 Sunil	De	Silva	-	Chief	Financial	Officer	(Acting	Chief	Executive	Officer	until	31	July	2008)	 	 	
	 Pio	Vunituraga	-	General	Manager	Human	Resources	 	 	
 Om Dutt Sharma - General Manager Network   
 Ravuni Uluilakeba - General Manager Marketing   
 Anand Nanjangud - Chief Information Officer   
 Eparama Tawake - General Manager Generation   
 Fatiaki Gibson - General Manager Major Projects and Strategy   
 Tuvitu Delairewa - General Manager Corporate Services   
 Saumendra Bandyopadhyay - Project Manager Network Augmentation   
   
	 The	aggregate	remuneration	to	the	specified	executives	for	the	financial	year	ended	31	December	2008	and	2007	were:			

  
   2008 2007
     $’000  $’000
   
 Salary, bonus and allowances 968 1,100
 Superannuation 92 86
 Other benefits 415 429
   
 Total 1,475 1,615
   
   
(d)   During the year, the Authority has supplied electricity to the Government of Fiji, other Government owned  

entities, directors and related entities and to executives at normal commercial rates, terms and conditions.   
 

(e)  Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of services   
 
 Receivable from related parties: (note 8)   
 Advance to joint venture 2,174 2,174
 Government of Fiji 405 185
   
(f)  Loans to related parties   
 Loans amounting to $10,977,708 were granted to the joint venture company (2007: $10,977,708). The details of the 

loans given are disclosed under note 12.   
   
	 During	the	year,	the	Authority	earned	interest	income	amounting	to	$825,583	(2007:	$823,328)	on	the	above	loans.	  
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STATISTICS 2008

tRansMission & suB-tRansMission CentRaL
District 132kv o/h Line (km) 33kv o/h Line (km) 33kv u/g Cable (km) substations transformer Mva

  2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Wailoa - Cunningham 62 62             120 120
Cunningham - Kinoya A         3 3 1 1    
Cunningham - Kinoya B         3 3 1 1 48 48
Cunningham - Vatuwaqa         4 4 1 1 15 15
Cunningham - Hibiscus Park A         7 7 1 1 20 20
Cunningham - Hibiscus Park B     10 10 5 5        
Cunningham - Sawani         1 1        
Vatuwaqa - Suva         5 5 1 1 45 45
Kinoya - Vatuwaqa     18 18 4 4        
Kinoya - Sawani             1 1 15 15
Hibiscus Park - Wailekutu         6 6 1 1 5 5
Hibiscus Park - Suva         3 3 1 1    
Wailekutu - Deuba     38 38         5 5

totaL 62 62 66 66 41 41 8 8 273 273

tRansMission & suB-tRansMission WesteRn
DistRiCt 132kv o/h Line (km) 33kv o/h Line (km) 33kv u/g Cable (km) substations transformer Mva
  2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

Wailoa             1 1 105 111
Wailoa - Vuda 78 78         2 2 98 98
Vuda - Pinapple Corner A     8 8 1 1 1 1 30 30
Vuda - Rarawai     32 32     1 1 10 12
Rarawai - Vatukoula     19 19     1 1 10 10
Vatukoula - Tavua     4 4 2 2 1 1 5 5
Vuda - Waqadra A     16 16     1 1 40 40
Vuda - Waqadra B     11 11 2 2 1       
Waqadra - Sigatoka     59 59     2 2 7 8
Sigatoka - Korolevu     29 29     1 1 5 5
Vuda - Rarawai Tee-off to Pineapple Corner     2 2 1 1        
Wailoa - Wainikasou     29 29         10 7
Nagado - Sabeto     10 10  0.3 0.3      3 3
Nacocolevu - Butoni    2 0.4 0.4
Nacocolevu - Sigatoka   3 3 3 3
Nacocolevu - Korolevu   26 26 3 3 1 1
Sabeto - Waqadra   7 7     40 40
Vuda - Sabeto   10 10      

totaL 78 78 265 267 13 13 13 12 363 369

DistRiBution netWoRK - CentRaL
  oveRheaD Lines (km) unDeRgRounD CaBLes (km) suBstations instaLLeD kva
DistRiCt high voltage Low voltage high voltage Low voltage

  2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Deuba 161 165 121 125 16 17 41 41 190 202 17,530 18,236
Lami 51 51 62 63 45 45 4 4 150 153 43,853 44,054
Suva 16 16 136 141 204 207 41 42 168 174 87,132 93,682
Kinoya 122 124 192 194 57 60 33 33 272 281 76,490 78,200
Nausori 214 218 269 273 17 17 2 2 383 394 41,110 41,509
Korovou 163 174 164 172 3 3 0 0 196 219 3,620 4,072
Levuka 19 49 24 39 1 1 0 0 32 49 5,232 5,545
Wailoa 11 11 6 6 0 0 0 0 10 11 196 201

totaL 757 808 974 1,013 343 350 121 122 1,401 1,483 275,163 285,499

Increase  51    39  7   1    82  10,336
% Increase  7%   4%   2%   1%   6%   4%

DistRiBution netWoRK - WesteRn
  oveRheaD Lines (km) unDeRgRounD CaBLes (km) suBstations instaLLeD kva  
DistRiCt high voltage Low voltage high voltage Low voltage  

  2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

Nadi - Tavua 1,180 1,193 1,790 1,804 154 156 69 69 1,697 1,739 136,367 142,129
Sigatoka 306 307 491 493 4 4 8 9 356 370 22,283 22,704
Rakiraki 140 146 172 173 3 4 1 1 129 134 6,255 6,367
Labasa 379 383 694 699 12 12 3 3 351 360 20,479 21,172
Savusavu 90 90 65 65 6 7 1 1 96 96 4,989 5,494

totaL 2,095 2,119 3,212 3,234 179 183 82 83 2,629 2,699 190,373 197,866

Increase   24   22   3   1   70  7,493
Increase   1%   1%   2%   1%   3%  4%
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 geneRation statistiCs (exCLuDing inDePenDent PoWeR PRoDuCeRs)
 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Units Generated - Wailoa Hydro (MWh) 417,106 447,771 412,097 460,610 448,253 343,655 357,279 322,489 315,569 481,098 462,986
Units Generated - Wainiqeu Hydro (MWh) 816 2,079 2,286 2,347 1,945 74 1,159 1,099 1,329 1,387 688
Units Generated - Wainikasou Hydro (MWh)   Commissioned in 2004    8,919 15,151 18,272 21,079 18,420
Units Generated -Nagado Hydro (MWh)   Commissioned in 2006      6,085 4,922 12,996

total generated - hydro (MWh) 417,922 449,850 414,383 462,957 450,198 343,729 367,357 338,739 341,255 508,486 495,090

Units Generated - Diesel VLIS (MWh) 51,148 45,087 75,905 69,638 117,763 244,848 241,084 304,863 354,174 183,329 162,760
Units Generated - Diesel Others (MWh) 33,557 33,524 33,606 36,879 35,738 39,773 41,105 41,169 40,189 41,740 46,178
Units Generated - HFO          30,920 60,807

total generated - thermal (MWh) 84,705 78,611 109,511 106,517 153,501 284,621 282,189 346,032 394,363 255,989 269,745 

Units Generated - Wind Farm (MWh) - - - - - - - - - 3,351 4,604 
Total Generated - Solar Panel (MWh) 12 9 11 14 10 9 6 2 4 1 0

total generated  - Wind & solar (MWh) 12 9 11 14 10 9 6 2 4 3,352 4604

total Fea generation (MWh) 502,639 528,470 523,905 569,488 603,709 628,359 649,552 684,773 735,622 767,827 769,439

made up of:          
Total VLIS Generation (MWh) 468,266 492,867 488,013 530,262 566,026 588,512 607,288 642,505 694,104 724,700 722,573
Total Other Generation (MWh) 34,373 35,603 35,892 39,226 37,683 39,847 42,264 42,268 41,518 43,127 46,866
FEA Station Auxilliary Usage (MWh) 10,677 9,926 12,777 6,473 4,815 6,777 6,144 7,294 10,101 7,865 9,138
FEA Auxilliaries as a % of Total Generation 2% 2% 2% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% contribution from Hydro Generation  83% 85% 79% 81% 75% 55% 57% 49% 46% 66% 64%
% contribution from Thermal  17% 15% 21% 19% 25% 45% 43% 51% 54% 33% 35%
% contribution from Wind & Solar - - - - - - - - - 1% 1%
% increase/(decrease) in Hydro Generation 3% 8% -8% 12% -3% -24% 7% -8% 1% 49% -3% 

% increase/(decrease) in Diesel VLIS Generation 229% -12% 68% -8% 69% 108% -2% 26% 16% -48% -11%
% increase/(decrease) in Total Thermal Generation 84% -7% 39% -3% 44% 85% -1% 23% 14% -35% 5% 
% increase/(decrease) in Total Generation 12% 5% -1% 9% 6% 4% 3% 5% 7% 4% 0.2%

Monasavu Maximum Dam Level (MSL) 745 745 745 745 736 733 737 735 743 746 742
Monasavu Minimum Dam Level (MSL) 723 729 742 718 718 714 719 721 721 728 723

STATISTICS 2008




